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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFEHE

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | present to you the
audited consolidated final results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded a
revenue and loss attributable to the shareholders of approximately
HK$59,841,000 (2015: approximately HK$124,463,000) and
approximately HK$79,608,000 (2015: approximately HK$5,519,000)
respectively. The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

Loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately HK$79,608,000 (2015: approximately HK$5,519,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$74,089,000 compared
with last year. The net effect of increasing in loss was mainly due
to the decrease in gross profit of approximately HK$30,634,000,
increase in loss on change in fair value of convertible bond of
approximately HK$34,479,000 and an impairment loss on intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$12,012,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
For the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Group continued to
focus on coal resources mining business.

During the financial year, the growth of PRC economy continued
to slow down. The demand for coals from the market has been
decreasing gradually in recent years as a result of fewer large scale
industrial and infrastructure projects and the promotion of the use
of clean energy by the PRC government, which also had negative
impacts on the coal price, exerting high pressure to the Group’s
operation. However, the management of the Group has adjusted
short-term operation strategy and modified the production plan
through understanding the local government on the policies and
taking advantages of the “One Belt One Road” initiative. The Group
will keep strictly controlling the costs and expenses to maintain a
strong financial position as a whole.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EEi#f &

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan* and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan*#

Pursuant to the instructions from the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC, the Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the “Xinjiang
Land Department”) had to plan for a management restructuring of
seven different coal mines (including the Zexu Mine) in the Xiheishan
Mining Area (the “Optimization and Upgrading Plan”), consolidating
some smaller mines together so as to increase the size efficiency
(for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
11 November 2011). After being informed of this Optimization and
Upgrading Plan, the Board has requested our management in
Xinjiang to conduct frequent meetings and negotiations with the
Xinjiang Land Department and other relevant government authorities
in order to protect the Company’s interest in relation to the
exploration permit of the Zexu Mine (the “Exploration Permit”).

According to the letter dated 13 June 2012 issued by the
Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry of Changji Prefecture (the
“Changji Administrative Bureau”) informing the updated status
of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the following proposals
(the “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan”) in relation to the
Company’s Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine have been submitted to
the working group head office for coal industry structural upgrade
work of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region for consideration and
approval:

1. The Company’s Kaiyuan Mine would be restructured and
upgraded, and the exploration right in the Zexu Mine granted
to the Company would be terminated; and

2. The mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where the Company
is now conducting mining activities, was proposed to
be increased from 1.1596 square kilometers to 4.12
square kilometers, with the estimated coal resources of
approximately 131.18 million tonnes.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EEi#f &

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan* and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan*# (continued)

As at the date hereof, the Company has still not yet received any
written notification from the relevant Xinjiang government department
in respect of the approval of the Updated Optimization and
Upgrading Plan.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2014,
the Exploration Permit of the Zexu Mine of the Company originally
expired on 20 February 2014. Concerned that the Company’s
position and rights in the Optimization and Upgrading Plan might be
compromised since the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan
had still not then been approved by the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region Government, the Company through its Xinjiang staff has
continued to make informal representations to Chinese officials
urging them to exercise administrative discretion to renew the
Exploration Permit despite the fact that the Company had earlier
obtained a PRC legal opinion advising the Company no further
renewal beyond 20 February 2014 could be obtained for Zexu Mine
Exploration Permit. Eventually, on 19 March 2014, the Company
obtained a renewal permit from Xinjiang Land Department granting
the renewal of the Exploration Permit from 25 February 2014 to 25
February 2016, and on 19 May 2016, the Company further obtained
the renewal of the Exploration Permit with valid period from 5 April
2016 to 5 April 2017.

# “Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Management Restructuring Plan” in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 November 2011 and in the announcements, notices, circulars,
interim reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.

L “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Updated Restructuring Proposals” in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 June 2012 and in the announcements, notices, circulars, interim
reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.

PROSPECTS

The Board considers that the coal business is full of challenges
and endeavors to achieve our goal of bringing maximum values
for shareholders by strengthening management of the Company,
controlling the cost of coal mining, modified the production plan
through understanding the local government on the policies and
taking advantages of the “One Belt One Road” initiative, seizing
new chances, exploring new markets, and seeking for investment
opportunities.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EEi#f &

PROSPECTS (continued)

Although the Company has obtained a renewal Exploration Permit
of Zexu Mine from Xinjiang Land Department from 5 April 2016 to
5 April 2017, no development or production activity is now taking
place and we have no existing plan to apply for the mining permit of
Zexu Mine as the Company is still waiting for the written notification
from the relevant Xinjiang government department in respect of
the approval of the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan.
The Company will continue to follow up the updated status of the
approval process of the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan,
in order to protect the interests of the Company in Kaiyuan Mine and
Zexu Mine.

Despite the aforesaid progress of the Updated Optimization
and Upgrading Plan, the Company is still waiting for the written
notification from the relevant Xinjiang government department in
respect of the approval of the Updated Optimization and Upgrading
Plan. It is therefore uncertain whether the proposals can be approved
by the PRC Government eventually. For this reason, the Company
would keep all options open and the Company would not at this
stage rule out the possibility of resuming the exploration process for
Zexu Mine and then applying for a mining permit of the Zexu Mine
either by the Company alone or jointly with other companies having
coal mines in the vicinity if the circumstances warrant such course of
action being taken.

APPRECIATION

| wish to thank my fellow directors, management and staff for their
unrelentless efforts for the business development of the Company.
On behalf of the Board, | express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and business
partners for their continuing support of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ETHBERE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$59,841,000
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$124,463,000). It represents a decrease of approximately
HK$64,622,000 or 51.92% as compared with last year.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
decreased to approximately HK$24,532,000 (2015: approximately
HK$55,166,000). This was mainly due to decrease in sales in the
period as a result of the weak demand for coal in Xinjiang area of the
PRC.

Loss for the year

Loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately HK$79,608,000 (2015: approximately HK$5,519,000),
representing an increase of loss of approximately HK$74,089,000
as compared with last year. The net effect of increasing in loss
was mainly due to the decrease in gross profit of approximately
HK$30,634,000, the increase in loss on change in fair value
of convertible bond of approximately HK$34,479,000 and the
impairment loss on intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$12,012,000.

Impairment loss on intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment

The Company completed the acquisition of 51% and 49% equity
interest in Star Fortune International Investment Company Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of the mining rights and the related
fixed assets of the Kaiyuan Mine (the “Coal Mine Assets”), on 3
July 2009 and 16 August 2010 respectively (details of which were
respectively set out in the circulars of the Company dated 12 June
2009 and 27 July 2010 and announcements of the Company dated
3 July 2009 and 17 August 2010) (the “Acquisitions”).

The amount of impairment loss on intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment of HK$12,012,000 refers to the amount of
impairment loss recognised in respect of the Coal Mine Assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the year (continued)

The Company conducted valuation of the Coal Mine Assets every
financial year after the Acquisitions in compliance with the relevant
accounting policies. The Company has engaged Roma Appraisals
Limited as its independent professional valuer for the purpose of
assessing the value of the Coal Mine Assets as at 31 March 2016.
The valuation was based on value in use basis, which is defined as
the present value of the future cash flow expected to be derived
from the Coal Mine Assets. The valuer has considered using
market-based approach, income-based approach and asset-based
approach to assess the value and finally adopted the income-based
approach in arriving at the value in use of the Coal Mine Assets.
When conducting the valuation, the valuer has taken into account
factors including but not limited to selling prices and sales volume
of coal, production cost and other expenses, capital expenditure,
production plan and discount rate, the current conditions of the
market and the Company and estimated trend in the future, etc.

The table below sets out the sales volume, selling prices and gross
revenue of different types of coal of the Company for the year ended
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31 March 2016 as compared with the year ended 31 March 2015:— —+—BIEFETRBAERZHE - B
AR falas - —
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 Percentage change
“Z-1fMA-HE “T-MEmA-AZ
“E-XE=A=+-H “F-RF=A=1—H BALES
Selling Selling Selling
Sales price Gross Sales price Gross Sales price Gross
volume  perton revenue  volume  perton  revenue  volume  perton  revenue
#E BMEE Ads HE BHWERE AN HE BMEE A&
(Tonnes) (HKS) (HK$'000)  (Tonnes) (HK$)  (HK$'000)
(®) (Bx) (TExm) ()  (&m) (F#rn)
Saw Cut Coal ERARE 20,314 116 2,349 1,504 14 212 1,250% -18%  1,008%
Large Coal ARt 89,191 131 11,653 131,676 136 17,921 -32% -4% -35%
Middle Coal iR 151,283 129 19,568 269,031 139 37,434 -44% -7% -48%
Small Medium Coal /i 53,201 104 5546 97,068 110 10,722 -45% -5% -48%
38 Coal =NE 59,076 85 5037 71,362 98 7,008 -17% -13% -28%
Sub-total for Coal RNt 373,065 / 44154 570,641 / 73291  -34.62% / -40%
Slack Coal R 161,155 72 11,559 618,740 74 45749 -74% -3% -75%
Weathered Coal R 93,812 44 4128 125,074 43 5,424 -25% 2% -24%
Total @t 628,033 /59,841 1,314,455 /124,463 -52% / -52%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the year (continued)

The market demand for coal had been persistently decreasing
in recent years due to a decrease in large scale industrial and
infrastructure projects and promotion of the use of clean energy by
the PRC government, which led to high pressure on the operation
of the Group and had negative impacts on selling price of coals
generally. Although selling prices of coal decreased, sales volume did
not increase accordingly which offset the marginal revenue, leading
to a decrease in gross revenue of coal.

No growth rate for the projection of production cost and other
expenses of coal per ton was applied by the valuer. The valuation
methodology in arriving at the discount rates as at 31 March 2015
and 31 March 2016 was consistent. The post-tax discount rates
adopted were 12.90% and 14.00% respectively as at 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2016 and the pre-tax discount rates adopted
were 37.45% and 26.23% respectively as at 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2016. The change in post-tax discount rates was due to the
change in market data and parameters adopted in the calculation of
discount rate as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 as follows:—

Bt 5 ol A (48)
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As at As at
31 March 31 March
2016 2015 Change
R=ZB—XRE KIZT—1F
=A=+—-8B =A=+—H 2
Risk free rate R f A X 2.89% 3.77% -0.88%
Market risk premium iRk E 10.17% 8.44% +1.73%
Beta coefficient B EE 1.16 1.1 +0.06%
Size premium RERE 5.78% 5.99% -0.21%
Cost of equity &N PN 20.45% 19.08% +1.37%
Cost of debt ERSEAR 4.90% 5.90% -1.00%
Weight of equity value to EABEEL S
enterprise value BELLA 80.54% 82.88% -2.34%
Weight of debt value to BBEEGRE
enterprise value BELD 19.46% 17.12% +2.34%
Corporate tax rate PEER= 25.00% 25.00% 0.00%
Weighted average cost of capital  fN#E S 15& 4 5§ 4« 17.19% 16.57% +0.62%
Inflation rate R E 2.82% 3.21% -0.39%
Discount rate BRI R 14.00% 12.90% +1.10%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the year (continued)

Major assumptions adopted by the valuer in the valuation of the Coal
Mine Assets include:

a. The resource estimates for Kaiyuan Mine sourced from a
technical report as at 27 June 2010 prepared by John T.
Boyd Company and certain engineering survey reports can
reasonably reflect the reserve status of Kaiyuan Ming;

b.  The projected coal price for the second quarter to fourth
quarter of 2016 was based on the projected sales and
production schedule provided by the management of the
Company. The estimated coal price for 2017 and onwards
equals the average coal price adopted in 2016;

c.  Economic conditions will not deviate significantly from the
projections regarding the production schedule, selling volume,
operating expenses and capital expenditure provided by the
management of the Company;

d.  The mining license of Kaiyuan Mine could be renewed up to
June 2018; and

e. As at the date of the valuation, the Company has still not yet
received any written notification from any Xinjiang government
department on the update status of the approval process of
the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan. In view of the
uncertainties in the final outcome regarding the approval of
the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the additional
resources in the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan is
not considered in the valuation of the Coal Mine Assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the year (continued)

The valuation report showed that the value in use of the Coal Mine
Assets as at 31 March 2016 was RMB48,241,000, which was lower
than its book value and mainly attributable to (1) the projections in
the expected lower sales volume and return of coal provided by
the management of the Company as at 31 March 2016 given the
decrease in the sales volume of coal for the financial year ended 31
March 2016; (2) global economic downturn and downward pressure
of the economy of the PRC; and (3) oversupply of coal.

The valuation report and the value in use were assessed and
reviewed by the Directors of the Company. The auditor has
subsequently audited and confirmed the amount of impairment
loss on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment of
HK$12,012,000, which was derived by taking the difference between
the value in use of the Coal Mine Assets and its book value.

Goodwill of the Coal Mine Assets was irrelevant in the calculation of
the said impairment loss.

Increase in loss on change in fair value of convertible bond

The zero coupon convertible bond (the “Convertible Bond”) of the
Company in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000 was issued on
14 March 2008 with a conversion price of HK$0.2 per share (subject
to adjustments) and maturity date of 17 March 2011 (details of
which were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 28
January 2008 and 14 March 2008).

The maturity date of the Convertible Bond was then extended to 13
March 2014 and further extended to 13 March 2017 (details of which
were respectively set out in the circulars of the Company dated 21
February 2011 and 13 February 2014 and announcements of the
Company dated 11 March 2011 and 10 March 2014).

As at the date of this report, the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bond is HK$200,000,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the year (continued)

The Company conducted valuation for the fair value of the
Convertible Bond every financial year after its issuance in compliance
with the relevant accounting policies. The Company has engaged
Roma Appraisals Limited as its independent professional valuer
for the purpose of assessing the fair value of the Convertible Bond
as at 31 March 2016. In assessing the fair value of the Convertible
Bond, the binomial option pricing model was adopted and factors
including stock price of the Company, specific terms and structure
of the Convertible Bond, trading conditions and liquidity of the
Convertible Bond, and ancillary effects associated with the exercise
or conversion and partial conversion of the Convertible Bond were
taken into account. It was assumed that the equation is “discount
rate = spot interest rate + other spread”, whereas it was concluded
that the credit rating of the Convertible Bond should be between “BB”
and “Below B” with the assumption that the other spread would not
be changed in a period of time, and the discount rate was 7.385%.

The fair values of the Convertible Bond were HK$244,201,000
and HK$317,650,000 as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016
respectively. The amounts were assessed and reviewed by the
Directors of the Company and reviewed and audited by the auditor
of the Company. According to the relevant accounting policies, the
increase in fair value of the Convertible Bond represents an increase
in liabilities of the Company. The amount of the change in fair value
of the Convertible Bond of HK$73,449,000 was derived by taking
the difference between the two aforementioned fair values. The
significant change in fair value of the Convertible Bonds was mainly
due to the significant change in the stock price of the Company
during the financial year ended 31 March 2016 and hence affected
the expected volatility of the stock price of the Company. The closing
stock prices of the Company were HK$0.43 and HK$0.63 as at
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 respectively and the expected
volatility of the stock price of the Company was 46.8% and 116.1%
based on the historical price volatility of the Company for the financial
years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segment

The Group’s operating segment, based on information reported
to the chief operating decision makers who are also the executive
directors, for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, is more specifically focused on the types of goods
delivered and services provided by the Group’s operating divisions.

Coal mine business is the only reportable operating segment from
which the Group derived its revenue from sale of coal. Accordingly,
no further segment information is provided.

Coal Mining Business

Coal mining is the sole business of the Group at present. It contributed
a revenue of approximately HK$59,841,000 for the year ended 31
March 2016 (2015: approximately HK$124,463,000), representing a
51.92% decrease as compared with last year.

Sales and Production of Coals

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group sold 0.63
million tonnes of coals with total sales income of approximately
HK$59,841,000. Details of coal sales in tonnes are listed in the
below table:

AEEZEDBEAEERMFERERT
REERREERTRBPTEFR)ABREZE
FETON  LHEIEAREEZLENEMR
8o R PR ARG 2 82 -

BRIREG /R A RELENTE  MAKH
Wt R B Z N B IRREE o LI E\IR
i — TN AR

IHTEE

HEANEB B —NEKHE HEZ
T-XNEZA=Z+—HILFE  ApEZI
B4 /859,841,000 L ( —E— R F ¢
#9124,463,000/87T) + BEFHA51.92% °

RRHEREE
BE_T-—RF=ZA=1T—HILFE &
SEEH0.63ABMERIK - BMIHEWALNS
59,841,000/8 7T ° LAMEGT Z BRIR $H & FF B
NI

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2016 2015

—E-KF —E—RF

Coal sales BRIRIHE 628,033 1,314,455
tonnesMi§ tonnesMg
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Coal Sales (tonnes) and Percentage of Coal Sales

RSN (W) RIERSEE T AL

Coal Sales Coal Sales

(tonnes) in %

iR iHeE R IHE

(W) AN

Saw Cut Coal TRER AR 20,314 3.23
Large Coal AR 89,191 14.20
Middle Coal AR 151,283 24.09
Small Medium Coal N==E s 53,201 8.47
38 Coal =N\ 59,076 9.41
Slack Coal R 161,155 25.66
Weathered Coal R & 93,813 14.94
Total Sales RHE 628,033 100.00

Reserves and Resources

The Group owns one mining right and one exploration right in
Xinjiang, PRC including Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine and Zexu Open
Pit Coal Mine respectively. The estimated remaining coal reserve in
Kaiyuan Mine was 10.39 million tonnes as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
12.13 million tonnes). During the year, there were 1.74 million tonnes
of coal being extracted. The original exploration permit of Zexu Mine
had expired on 26 February 2016 and a renewal of the permit was
granted by the Xinjiang Land Department with valid period from 5
April 2016 to 5 April 2017. The following tables are the estimated
coal reserves for the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine and estimated coal
resources for the Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine as of 31 March 2010
conducted by John T. Boyd Company in June 2010.

AEBRFEFENREREREEEEX
Big - DRIE —ERBRR —IBEHRE -
RZE—R"E=ZA=1+—8 ' JURKEGEE
FpHIBEHEAR10308BME( —Z—FF ¢
12138 &ME) - FNFRKI.748 BBEEKX -
EEEENREMEFAIBZERZZE—R
FZAZtHNEER  BEEHEHIEDH
FERLERERD AR —AF
WARRBE-Z—+tFWARH - TXA
John T. Boyd Company? —Z—Z 47X A5t
—E-ZTF=ZA=+—HIRBEREE G
FHE R E ORI R KRR 2 TR ER
Frimed o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) PEER(E)
Reserves and Resources (continued) BHERER(E)
Estimated coal reserves for the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine: RBERER  GatERESE
Average Mineable Marketable Reserves (million tonnes)
Seam Thickness (m) As of 31 March 2010
AR AERE(FEM])
FHERE(CK) BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—H
% of
Seam Total (Coal/Parting) Proved Probable Total Total
h#Est
RIE BT URE®RE) =B FE AT R st ADL
North of Current Pit
(Potentially Oxidized)
RAEBER (EAESL)
B, 13.1 - 4.58 4.58 100.00
Mine Plan Area
EILREIEE
B, 10.8 3.57 - 3.57 25.00
B, 19.6 10.86 - 10.86 75.00
14.43 - 14.43 100.00
Total
st
B, 10.8 SOl - 3514 19.00
B, 17.7 10.86 4.58 15.44 81.00
14.43 4.58 19.01 100.00
Approximately 75% of the total reserves are classified as “Proved”. BIFENT5%DFERIFEE IR -

Coal Reserve as at 31 March 2016 = Coal Reserve as at 31 March R-ZZ—R"F=A=+—HA7EBEH#HE =1

2015 — Amount of coal extracted (the “Coal Extracts”) by the Group —ZE—RAE=A=+—RAZHEH#HE =&

during 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016. ER—_E—AFMHH—HBE=_ZT—X F=H
=+ —HERERE 2 ERE((EREZ])
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reserves and Resources (continued)

Estimated coal resources for the Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine
Exploration Right area totalling 119.38 Mt, are summarized below:

PEER(E)

HERBR(E
ERBEXREEDFRESE Z AHEEERE
#119.38 HEME - fLtan T -

Marketable Resources
(million tonnes)

AEER(EEHT)

Average Mineable % of
Seam Seam Thickness (m) Measured Indicated Total Resources
AR HEIR
g FHERE(CK) R 2 #Et Btk
B, 8.5 10.23 10.46 20.69 17
Bs 3.9 2.77 3.98 6.75 6
Bs 6.3 5.80 10.42 16.22 14
B, 1.8 0.29 0.01 0.30 1
B. 6.1 6.85 10.21 17.06 14
B, 6.3 8.06 8.03 16.09 13
B, 211 22.58 19.69 42.27 35
Total #25+ 56.58 62.80 119.38 100

Cost of Sales SHERK A

The cost of sales for the year was approximately HK$35,309,000
(2015: approximately HK$69,297,000). The cost mainly comprised
machine rental cost and direct labor cost. The decrease in cost
of sales during the year was mainly due to the decrease in sales
volume.

Geographic segment

The geographical location of customers is determined based on the
location where the goods are delivered. The Group’s revenue and
results from operations are all derived from activities in the PRC.
No business activities are covered outside the PRC. The principal
assets of the Group are also located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
geographical segment information is required.

F RS KA 4 /435,309,000 T (ZF
—ThF : £969,297,00087T) - KAEEE
ERWAEKRAREZSHNA - FRHE
PRANTBE - TEBRIHERRDAE -

BESE
B MERIE XS S ST o A
£ YSRGS E RS P E Y 27 -
FERESENLE LT - AEEZ X EEET
BEIRERE - Al - BERMLEHBE
B o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 March 20186, the Group had:

° net current assets of approximately HK$19,480,000 (2015:
approximately HK$324,547,000). The substantial decrease in
net current assets was mainly due to the increase of inventories
approximately HK$26,922,000, the decrease of tax payable by
approximately HK$5,780,000 and the increase of convertible
bond designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss by approximately HK$317,650,000.

° no structured deposit was arranged during the year (2015:
approximately HK$27,923,000) and cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$343,587,000 (2015: approximately
HK$334,151,000) which were the major components of the
Group’s current assets of approximately HK$393,415,000
(2015: approximately HK$385,624,000).

° current liabilities of approximately HK$373,935,000 (2015:
approximately HK$61,077,000) which comprised mainly
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$317,650,000 (2015:
Nil).

° non-current liabilities of approximately HK$9,363,000
(2015: approximately HK$255,354,000) which comprised
mainly convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss of nil (2015: approximately
HK$244,201,000) and deferred tax liabilities of approximately
HK$6,555,000 (2015: approximately HK$8,391,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio was 4.36 (2015: 1.54). The computation
is based on total debt (convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) divided by total equity.

Charges on Group’s Assets
As at 31 March 2016, none of the Group’s assets was under
charges (2015: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and incurs costs in RMB
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk based on fluctuations between Hong Kong dollars and RMB
arising from its core operation in the PRC. In order to minimize the
foreign currency risk exposure between these two currencies, the
Group maintained cash balances in both currencies that are sufficient
to meet three to four months’ operating cash flows requirements of
the Group.

RBEESRUBER
RZE—RF=ZA=+—8 ' AEEHEF :

RENE EFE4919,480,0008 L (=&
— R ¢ 49324,547,000870) © M E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEs#H R o4

TREASURY POLICIES

Apart from the issue of convertible bond at their face value of
HK$200,000,000, the Group finances its operation mainly by internal
generated resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 84 employees (2015:
90) spreading among the PRC and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC. Employment relationship has been
well maintained. The Group has adopted an extensive training policy
for its employees. It has also sponsored senior executives for higher
education programmes.

B BR

B %47 E {8 4 200,000,0007% 7T 2 Al iR &
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEARGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lo Fong Hung, aged 61, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Ms. Lo is also the Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company and is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lo also serves for several non-
listed companies, namely as the chairman of China International
Fund Limited, China Sonangol International Holding Limited
and China Sonangol International Limited and as the director of
Sonangol Sinopec International Limited and New Bright International
Development Limited. Since 2004, Ms. Lo started exploring and
developing energy resources and industrial investment world-
wide. Ms. Lo owns 30% shareholding interests in New Bright
International Development Limited, which currently holds 70%
shareholding interests in China Sonangol International Limited. China
Sonangol International Limited is the holding company of Ascent
Goal Investments Limited, and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Lo is the wife of Mr. Wang Xiangfei.

Mr. Wang Xiangfei, aged 64, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Wang is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Renmin
University of China with a bachelor degree in economics in 1982.
Mr. Wang is now a Senior Accountant. Mr. Wang serves for several
non-listed companies, namely as the vice chief financial officer of
Sonangol Sinopec International Limited and as the financial advisor
of China Sonangol International Holding Limited. Mr. Wang is also
an independent non-executive director of China Development
Bank International Investment Limited, a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited,
a company listed on Stock Exchange and The Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

In addition, Mr. Wang was the independent non-executive director
of Chongqing Iron & Steel Company Limited from the July of 2002
to the June of 2009, China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited from the
December of 2006 to the November of 2012, companies listed on
the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang
was the independent non-executive director of Shandong Chenming
Paper Holdings Limited from the April of 2010 to the May of 2013,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang was the
independent non-executive director of SEEC Media Group Limited
from the June 20083 to the May 2015, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wang was also the external supervisor of Shenzhen
Rural Commercial Bank from the April 2009 to the May 2015.
Previously, Mr. Wang had also served as an executive director and
CEO of China Everbright International Limited, an executive director
of China Everbright Limited and China Everbright Technology Limited
(now known as China Haidian Holdings Limited), a director & assistant
general manager of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Mr.
Wang is the husband of Ms. Lo Fong Hung.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EER a4 TE A SHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Kwan Man Fai, aged 47, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Kwan is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in laws and
a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Kwan also holds a master
degree in laws from The London School of Economics and Social
Sciences, the University of London and a master degree in the
PRC law from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan is now a
consultant of Messrs. Anthony Siu & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kwan has over 10 years of experience in corporate finance and
banking work, including assisting various companies in their listing
on the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr.
Lam graduated from the University of Southampton, England with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Statistics. Mr. Lam is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director of an investment bank
and has over 20 years experience in investment banking as well as
over 3 years experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam is also
the independent non-executive director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

In addition, Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive director
of China Fortune Financial Group Limited from 14 September 2007
to 11 April 2014, Applied Development Holdings Limited from 1
October 2005 to 12 December 2011, Pearl Oriental Oil Limited
from 3 October 2008 to 19 March 2013, King Stone Energy Group
Limited from 23 April 2012 to 22 March 2013, Value Convergence
Holdings Limited from 4 January 2010 to 24 May 2012, CT
Environmental Group Limited from 14 June 2011 to 15 April 2014,
China Chuanglian Education Group Limited from 29 January 2008
to 5 October 2010, Hao Wen Holdings Limited from 17 November
2010 to 16 May 2011, Well Way Group Limited from 24 March
2011 to 16 April 2014, Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited from 22
December 2008 to 27 April 2012 and Finet Group Limited from 5
August 2009 to 24 January 2011, companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008.
Mr. Wong is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and
holds a certificate in financial management (CFM). Mr. Wong holds
a bachelor degree in chemical engineering and a master degree in
economics. Mr. Wong is an executive director and deputy chairman
of Raymond Industrial Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director
of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey, aged 47, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr.
Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in laws and a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Chan also
holds master degrees in laws from the City University of Hong Kong
and from the People’s University of China. Mr. Chan is currently a
partner of Messrs. David Y.Y. Fung & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in civil and commercial crime
litigation and also handles various transactions for corporate clients
and banks in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Chun Fung, aged 34, is the company secretary of the
Company appointed on 21 April 2015. Mr. Li graduated from
the Imperial College, University of London with master degree in
chemical engineering. Mr. Li is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experience in
corporate governance and compliance matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIWE

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Directors had reviewed the information contained in a
questionnaire in respect of the Company’s performance of its
corporate governance practices that the Company has applied the
principles of the code provisions under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March
2016 (“the year under review”), save for the deviations from code
provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7 as disclosed below.

THE BOARD

Roles and responsibilities

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company are responsible for the day to day operations of the
Company whereas the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are responsible for ensuring a high standard of financial
and management reporting to the Board and shareholders of the
Company as well as to provide a balanced composition in the Board
so that there is a strong independent element on the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board composition

The members of the Board during the year under review and up to
the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Lo Fong Hung (Chairman and Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Kwan Man Fai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Wong Man Hin, Raymond

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey

Xu Xiao Sheng (resigned on 21 January 2016)

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee at a meeting
as at the date of this report, the Board considers that all Directors
have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise so as to
give a balance of skills, knowledge and experience, and diversity
of perspectives required for the running of an effective Board. The
Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The brief biographical details
of the Directors and the senior management and relationship among
them are set out in the section headed “Biography of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

Board diversity

In September 2013, the Company adopted a policy on diversity of
the Board members. The policy is to review, assess and recommend
any appointment, re-election or any succession plan of any directors
to the Board from time to time after considering a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
tenure of appointment to allow for the Company’s business model
and specific needs.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings and general meeting

During the year under review, the Board held four regular meetings
and two ad-hoc meetings, and the Company held one general
meeting. The attendance records of individual Directors at the board
meetings and at the general meeting are set out below:

EEE(#&)

ESETARRRAEEH

REBEFEAR  EFSLRTHREHEZE
R ZRGEEE  WERARRBRIT AR
RAEEH - EHEEREFEERMER
REGHNLFLENT -

Number of Number of HE i
board meetings general meetings EZgeE RRA®
attended/ attended/ RE/ GBRE/
eligible eligible EE® SE%
Name of Directors to attend to attend BEEfE HiE HE
Executive Directors: HiTES:
Lo Fong Hung B
(Chairman and Managing Director) 5/6# 11 (FEFRESLER) 5/6* 11
Wang Xiangfei 5/5 11 TAw 5/5 11
Kwan Man Fai 5/5 11 BB 5/5 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIEHITES !
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 6/6* 11 ¢ 6/6* 11
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 6/6+ 11 HRE 6/6" 11
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 6/6* 0/1 TRiEyE 6/6* 01
Xu Xiao Sheng BN
(resigned on 21 January 2016) 4/4 1/ (RZZ2—X~F—A
Z+—HEHT) 4/4 il

# Independent Non-executive Directors had attended meeting(s) independently
held with the Chairman of the Board on the direction of the Group’s strategy and
policies during the year under review.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings and general meeting (continued)

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director or Committee Member.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. In accordance with the Company’s Bye-
laws, at each general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-executive Directors
who represent half of the Board and with one of whom holds
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise. Code provision A.4.1 specifies that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

Each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company was appointed on 25 March 2008 and entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years. Their
service agreements have been extended for three years commencing
on 25 March 2011 and further extended for three years commencing
on 25 March 2014. However, they are still subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-
laws.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and, after annual assessment by
the Nomination Committee at a meeting as at the date of this report,
the Company considers that all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors and officers’ liabilities has
been provided to cover potential legal actions against Directors and
officers.

Training and support for Directors

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
The Group provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. Details of the continuous
professional development participated by the Directors for the year
under review, that the Company received, are set out below:
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Attended seminars or SHEMHE
Name of Directors briefing/read materials EZ=H EhEhEEER
Executive Directors: HITES :
Lo Fong Hung v gl v

(Chairman and Managing Director) (EFREEREE)

Wang Xiangfei v T A v
Kwan Man Fai v hes v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BAFHITES !
Wong Man Hin, Raymond v ERG| v
Lam Ka Wai, Graham v MK v
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey v PR R e v
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BEERHFRS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by its Directors. All Directors of
the Company have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year under review.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive (“CE”) should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any officer
with CE title. Ms. Lo Fong Hung, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, also carried out the responsibility of
CE during such period. In view of the size of operation of the
Group, the Board considered that this structure is more suitable
for the Company as it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their own
terms of reference. The views of different committees and their
recommendation not only ensure proper control of the Group but
also the continual achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The Board conducts
regular review of the structure and composition of the committees
with particular attention to the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was set up in March 1999 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company have included the duties which are set out in code
provision C.3.3 of the Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
amended on 15 March 2016 in order to comply with the amendment
(Update No.115) to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Lam Ka Wai,
Graham, as the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Wong Man
Hin, Raymond and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

A total of five meetings were held during the year under review and
the individual attendance of members are as follows:

Exzsg(H)

BERZER ()

REBFERN  #BTRREE  BERIRE
2 I -

Number of HESE
meetings attended/ R/

Name of members eligible to attend KEHE BERHE

Lam Ka Wai, Graham (Chairman) 5/5 MERE(EFE) 5/5

Wong Man Hin, Raymond 5/5 B 5/5

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 5/5 PR R 5/5
Xu Xiao Sheng BN

(resigned on 21 January 2016) 5/5 (R=ZE—RF—A
—+—HET) 5/5

The Audit Committee reviewed the interim and annual results,
internal control system, and financial reporting matters in conjunction
with the external auditor. The Audit Committee endorsed the
accounting treatment adopted by the Company and had the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information
in this report complies with the applicable accounting standards and
Disclosure of Financial Information set out in Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was set up in July 2005 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company have included the duties which are
set out in code provision B.1.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee was amended on 27 March 2012 in order
to comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four members, an
Executive Director of the Company namely, Mr. Kwan Man Fai and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company namely,
Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey.

The remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee to the Board for determination, as
authorised by the shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regarded to the operating results of the Company, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions. The Board conducts
regular review of the structure and composition of the Committee
with particular attention to the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual members.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, one meeting was held and the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the existing remuneration
packages of the Board and the senior management of the Company.
The individual attendance of members are as follows:

EEZEE(H)

FHESE(HE)

REBFEERN  FHEZESCBT R
WEENEEERARASREEARRE
HBirE - @RI B 2 HELEIMT -

Number of HEeER
meetings attended/ e
Name of members eligible to attend REHE SERHE
Wong Man Hin, Raymond (Chairman) 11 wmYE(ERFE) 11
Kwan Man Fai 1/1 8 2 1/1
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 1/1 MR 1/1
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 1/1 BRiRE 171
Xu Xiao Sheng N
(resigned on 21 January 2016) 11 (RZZE—RF—H

Zt+—HEE) 11

Nomination Committee BEzEEe

The Nomination Committee was set up in March 2012 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company have included the duties which are
set out in code provision A.5.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary.

The Nomination Committee will take into consideration a candidate’s
qualification, experience, expertise, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives, the requirements applicable to the Company and the
structure and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence and care that
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before making
recommendation to the Board for their final appointment. Factors
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background, and
professional experience will also be taken into account to maintain a
balanced composition and diversity of perspectives of the Board.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee at a meeting
as at the date of this report, the Company considers under the policy
of board diversity, that the Board is currently composed of diversified
members of different gender and age, with education in economic,
legal, accounting and chemical engineering respectively from leading
universities in China (including Hong Kong) and England. Business
and professional experiences of the Board are even diversified which
include but not limited to, multinational entrepreneurship, listed
companies directorship in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen,
legal practices in Hong Kong, corporation finance and investment
banking, accounting and auditing, and financial management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company, Ms. Lo Fong Hung as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, Executive Director of the
Company, Mr. Kwan Man Fai and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond,
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey as the
members of the Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, one meeting was held and the
Nomination Committee had reviewed and adopted the existing
policy for the nomination of Directors. The individual attendance of
members are as follows:

EEZEE(H)

REZEE(H
REAZBEHRHARA T EREFLLE
BOARLREEREZEEIRE  MARA
WITESHUBRE NAR B =2 B IFH
TEEEXRLE  MRESTEMRBES
HRIRREZEEGKE -

REBEFEAR REZESERT XY
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Number of HESE
meetings attended/ RE
Name of members eligible to attend REHKE BEREE
Lo Fong Hung (Chairman) 1/1 BHA(EE) 1/1
Kwan Man Fai 1/1 Ehes 11
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 11 HEXHE 11
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 11 MERE 11
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 1/ PR R e 1/1
Xu Xiao Sheng BN
(resigned on 21 January 2016) 1/1 (RA—F—XF—A

—+—HEE) 1/1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE L

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.
During the year under review, the Board committees had developed
and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and reviewed
the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment relating to annual and interim
reports, inside information and price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures under the Listing Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant
to statutory requirements. As at 31 March 2016, the Directors of
the Company are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern basis.
The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 47 and 48 of
this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that a sound and effective
internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group
has adopted internal control procedures and policies to safeguard
the assets, to ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and
to carry out a reliable financial reporting and to guarantee compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has engaged SHINEWING
Risk Services Limited to conduct compliance and operation reviews
on the Group and reported its findings to the Audit Committee.
The reviews were performed half-yearly and covered, among other
things, review of the Group’s compliance procedures of Chapter 13:
Continuing obligations, Chapter 14: Notifiable transactions, Chapter
14A: Connected transactions, Chapter 18: Mineral companies
and Appendix 14: Corporate governance code and corporate
governance report of the Listing Rules; and Part XIVA: Disclosure of
inside information of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year under review, fees paid or payable to the auditor of the
Company, Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, and its affiliates by the
Group are as follows:

A 5 6 5 B
REBFER - AREDARER AR
HAEEEE (BB SHAEBEMERAR
REBBARZBRAMT :

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Audit services ENZIRTS 710 710

Non-audit and taxation services FEEX RIS RIS 300 481

Total #Et 1,010 1,191
COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Li Chun Fung, who
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Li has taken
over 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDER’S COMMUNICATIONS

A Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted on 27 March
2012 to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company. The policy was available on the Company’s website. The
Company has established various channels of communications with
its shareholders such as publication of interim and annual reports,
press release and announcement of the latest development of the
Company in a timely manner. The annual general meeting provides
an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
External auditor is also available at the annual general meeting to
address shareholders’ queries. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual directors.

ARRZABMERTREERE  FHA
RAIFEHBEAFETHE - RIELTHRIES.29
- FREBREBEFEARZE15 KL
RREEERE -

IR R B
ARRERZE——F = A+t HEHK
FBAMEBUR A ERAR R AT PRER « 5 B
EESBEBARRZEMSNIERNER - %
PR AT AR A R ER] - AARIERUE
ERBERFER  MTBEPHRERF
] OERNRAARZENERELTER
kat - RENAHEREAFASHRESS
RMER « INEREEM A RIRREAFRE
FEEMRER 2R - AN RIEREAFEAS
RS EEER VAR (BREENESZ
REDIREIRZBE ©

Annual Report 2016 &3 33



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {™#&343R%

SHAREHOLDER’S COMMUNICATIONS (continued)
Under code provision A.6.7 of the Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
the general meeting and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. It was noted that one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 August 2015
due to his other business commitments.

The 2016 annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 23
August 2016. A notice of annual general meeting will be sent to the
shareholders of the Company at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general
meeting (“SGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
The written requisition must state the purposes of the general
meeting, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of those shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid,
the shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100 shareholders, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting. The written request/statements must be signed
by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before the AGM
in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition. If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board (j) to include the resolution in the agenda
for the AGM,; or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by the shareholder(s)
concerned in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid
or the Shareholder(s) concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes
the shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM or the statement will not be circulated for the
general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post, fax or email. The contact details are set
out as below:

Registered office: Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Principal place of 8/F., Tower 2,
business in Admiralty Centre,
Hong Kong: 18 Harcourt Road,

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Postal address: 8/F., Tower 2.
Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong

Tel: 2248 0188
Fax: 2918 9931
Email: info@nannanlisted.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year under review, there were no change in the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

The directors of the Company present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
mining and sales of coal.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 158. The
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on
pages 159 to 160 of the annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in notes 25(b) and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

CONVERTIBLE BOND
Details of the convertible bond issued by the Company during the
year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR EVENTS

Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan* and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan*#

Pursuant to the instructions from the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC, the Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the “Xinjiang
Land Department”) had to plan for a management restructuring of
seven different coal mines (including the Zexu Mine) in the Xiheishan
Mining Area (the “Optimization and Upgrading Plan”), consolidating
some smaller mines together so as to increase the size efficiency
(for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
11 November 2011). After being informed of this Optimization and
Upgrading Plan, the Board has requested our management in
Xinjiang to conduct frequent meetings and negotiations with the
Xinjiang Land Department and other relevant government authorities
in order to protect the Company’s interest in relation to the
exploration permit of the Zexu Mine (the “Exploration Permit”).

According to the letter dated 13 June 2012 issued by the
Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry of Changji Prefecture (the
“Changji Administrative Bureau”) informing the updated status
of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the following proposals
(the “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan”) in relation to the
Company’s Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine have been submitted to
the working group head office for coal industry structural upgrade
work of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region for consideration and
approval:

1. The Company’s Kaiyuan Mine would be restructured and
upgraded, and the exploration right in the Zexu Mine granted
to the Company would be terminated; and

2. The mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where the Company
is now conducting mining activities, was proposed to be
increased from 1.1596 square kilometers to 4.12 square
kilometers, with the estimated coal resources of approximately
131.18 million tonnes.
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MAJOR EVENTS (continued)

Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan* and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan* (continued)

As at the date hereof, the Company has still not yet received any
written notification from the relevant Xinjiang government department
in respect of the approval of the Updated Optimization and
Upgrading Plan.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2014,
the Exploration Permit of the Zexu Mine of the Company originally
expired on 20 February 2014. Concerned that the Company’s
position and rights in the Optimization and Upgrading Plan might be
compromised since the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan
had still not then been approved by the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region Government, the Company through its Xinjiang staff has
continued to make informal representations to Chinese officials
urging them to exercise administrative discretion to renew the
Exploration Permit despite the fact that the Company had earlier
obtained a PRC legal opinion advising the Company no further
renewal beyond 20 February 2014 could be obtained for Zexu Mine
Exploration Permit. Eventually, on 19 March 2014, the Company
obtained a renewal permit from Xinjiang Land Department granting
the renewal of the Exploration Permit from 25 February 2014 to 25
February 2016, and on 19 May 2016, the Company further obtained
the renewal of the Exploration Permit with valid period from 5 April
2016 to 5 April 2017.

# “Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Management Restructuring Plan” in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 November 2011 and in the announcements, notices, circulars,
interim reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.

L “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Updated Restructuring Proposals” in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 June 2012 and in the announcements, notices, circulars, interim
reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 25(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statements of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2016, the Company had no retained profits available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus of
HK$128,013,000 may be distributed under certain circumstances. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$191,534,600 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 75.4% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 35.5%.
Purchases of goods and services from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 95.9% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
10 65.5%.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Lo Fong Hung (Chairman and Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Kwan Man Fai

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Man Hin, Raymond

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey

Xu Xiao Sheng (resigned on 21 January 2016)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Lo
Fong Hung and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey will retire by rotation and
be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 22 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director of the Company had a significant beneficial interest,
either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party at any time during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers were as follows:

Long position
Interests in an associated corporation of the Company
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percentage

Number of the issued
of shares share capital

Name of interested e 1T
Name of Directors associated corporation Nature of interest BEEERZ BRABA
EEHE HEEEER EEHE ik ¢E| BotE
Ms. Lo Fong Hung (Notes 1, 3) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%
B (P31 - 3) Development Limited corporation

BRI B RAR AR AR s
Mr. Wang Xiangfei (Note 2) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%
TR A (H5E2) Development Limited corporation
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Lo Fong Hung (“Ms. Lo”) is interested in 3,000 shares in New Bright
International Development Limited (“New Bright”), representing 30% of the
issued share capital of New Bright, which currently owns 70% shareholding
interests in China Sonangol International Limited (“China Sonangol”). China
Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal Investments Limited
(“Ascent Goal”), and the controlling shareholder of the Company. The
shareholding interests of Ascent Goal in the Company is set out in the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders” of this report.

2. Mr. Wang Xiangfei is the husband of Ms. Lo and is deemed to be interested
in 3,000 shares of New Bright under the SFO.

3. Ms. Lo, an executive director of the Company, owns 30% of the issued
share capital of New Bright which in turn is interested in 70% of China
Sonangol. China Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal. Thus, Ms.
Lo has an attributable interest in 569,616,589 shares of the Company and a
HK$200,000,000 convertible bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000
underlying shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

EERFTETHRAERRMGREEH
Rtz e (&)
FifsE -

1. BRI T (Bt )EEEIBERERER
AR (A ])3,000M DR - AEREIE
BT AN30% « MAKE B sl A LR ERE
HAERAR([ZHRERE ) 70%FEER - &
FEEASZREGRAR([BZ]) 2ZBRA
Al URARRHEREE - EIERAQNR] 2
PEAE R H N A RE E R & -

2. EFARFAERFELL LK MIREESNB
B GG AR A BE A 3,000/ BIBEAR 1) 2 #E 25 ©

3. ARBRITEERLTHBABECSHITRA
30% + MABHES LR RER70% e ° ZHE
BAEBZRZERAR - Bt - BLTHRAAR
569,616,5898% 1% {5 K 7 34 & 1,000,000,0000%
7R ) FERBA AR (9 #E % 2 200,000,000 7T A] #2
A& S R o

EEREROIES 2EF

BiRa MBS HMARMEN M IEES - RF
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TN T FRI EEREMEBBEALR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of the relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company

FERR

RZZB-REF=ZA=1t—B  ARAIREE
7R B IGRDIEIBHMEFEETZRRAM
BN BREXFRBEERE TESRERTT
BABZmIN - PHBRREAMEARAERK
ERARRABDHTRAZ BRI °

RARBRGSARRMD ZFAE

Approximate
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of
Total number the Company
Number of of shares (Note 6)
underlying and underlying ENN|
Number of shares held sharesheld EBTRA
Name of Shareholders Notes  Nature of interest shares held FrisheE FRROR  BABESH
RREE M BEME FRRGEE RAEE HEROEH (Hizke)
Ascent Goal 1,4 Beneficial owner 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
& ERBEBA
China Sonangol 2,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,689  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
LB corporation
RS EE R
New Bright 24 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
£liE corporation
R EE 2
Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica 34 Interests of controlled 569,616,689  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
RS T corporation
RS EE R
Africa Israel Investments Ltd 5 Beneficial owner 45,000,000 = 45,000,000 5.88%
BEREEA
Mr. Lev Leviev 5 Beneficial owner 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 0.13%
Lev Levievit & EREAA
5 Interests of controlled 74,000,000 - 74,000,000 9.67%
dcorporation
REHEE R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

1. Ascent Goal was directly interested in 569,616,589 shares and a further
1,000,000,000 underlying shares which may be fully allotted and issued
if the convertible bond are converted at the conversion price of HK$0.20
per share. These 1,569,616,589 shares were held by Ascent Goal directly
as beneficial owner. It includes (i) interests in 569,616,589 shares and (i)
the convertible bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000 underlying
shares.

2. Since Ascent Goal is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Sonangol which
is beneficially owned as to 70% by New Bright, the interests of Ascent Goal
is deemed to be the interests of China Sonangol and in turn the interests of
New Bright under the SFO.

3. Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica is deemed to have interests in the shares
and underlying shares through her 70% interest in New Bright.

4. The 569,616,589 shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares under the
convertible bond represent 74.42% and 130.66% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company respectively, thus the total of 569,616,589
shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares represent 205.08% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company. The conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bond will not be exercised and the Company
will not issue the conversion shares if, immediately following the conversion,
the Company would be unable to meet the public float requirement under
the Listing Rules.

5" For the shares held by Mr. Lev Leviev, of these shares, 45,000,000 shares
were held by Africa Israel Investments Ltd, a company controlled by Mr.
Lev Leviev through his 74.89% interests in Africa Israel Investments Ltd;
29,000,000 shares were held by Memorand Management (1998) Ltd,
a company controlled by Mr. Lev Leviev through his 99% interests in
Memorand Ltd.; and 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Lev Leviev directly.

6. The approximate percentage of shareholdings is based on 765,373,584
shares as at 31 March 2016, not the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company upon full conversion of the convertible bond.

Igﬂgi (nlﬁ)
RAQ B R G SER R 2178 ()

Wi

BIZ1A569,616,580M P iEE HiEELE -

WA PTHRAR (B 5 R SR (E FAR0. 2078 T E AR
] 4% 2 T Ac % & %77 2 §85M,000,000,000 %
MBI P E E s - 7%1,569,616,589
BRMHEEEAEXBEAEESE &
1 () 7 569,616,589 B A% 19 2 # = & (i) % K&
1,000,000,0008% /B BARR (5 2w 2 PTHAAR(E S o

HRERARTERZ2EMNBAR  MEF
B ARaEE SR 70% - BURIRE %&Hﬂh
f&fl - BIR 2 SR A% B 2 HEas
ARAR A B 2 #E s o

ST EERRIET0% MR AR
Betn RARRAR D 2 s -

7% 569,616,589 Iy R Al R E 5 B T
1,000,000,000 % 48 @ % 17 3 Bl 48 & A AN A
RAIIRE B BITIAR 2 74.42% 2 130.66% * A
It #%569,616,5890% #% 15 K 1,000,000,0004%
RGN & KEER AR AR A BITIRAZ
205.08% ° fMEFE H k% - AARIKREEED £
MRAZ ABFRERTE + BT RIRESH S
ZRBREB R TATE - MAR RIS & 81T
HIBmgm -

Fhlev LevieviE AFTEARMNME  ZZERMHD
245,000,000 % f& 1 f Lev LevievsE A R E
IR 74.89% 5 [ B H YR I 2 Africa Israel
Investments Ltd #f 5 i 29,000,000 f% % 17

Al /8 Lev Leviev 5t 4 7 £ A #E B 99% 1 &=
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RAEROBE D HRER T —A"F=A=+—
H2765,373,584 (DT E + IR IERA]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
No director of the Company had interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the
year and up to the date of this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors
of the Company, over 25% of the issued share capital of the
Company is held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 21 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR S

N\ Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 49 to 158, which comprise
the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 March
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

EEE5E (B8 SMEHMERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Member Crowe Horwath International

B IRET TR ISR 002
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016,
and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Betty P.C. Tse

Practising Certificate Number P0O3024

Hong Kong, 21 June 2016
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RERIRAMZ AR R
For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-Z—RF=A=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
PiEE FHET FAET
Revenue Wz 6 59,841 124,463
Cost of sales SHE R (35,309) (69,297)
Gross profit EF 24,532 55,166
Other revenue Habizs 7 16,015 11,016
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R D HE R (626) (743)
Administrative and T R EAth i 2 &
other operating expenses (27,813) (19,989)
Finance costs [ELE= NN (187) -
Change in fair value of convertible bond  AJ#fREH 2 A FEZS 26 (73,449) (38,970)
Change in fair value of structured deposit 4R IEER 2 A FEZE 22 - 656
Impairment loss on intangible assets and L EE RWE - WE X
property, plant and equipment FERERE (12,012 -
(Loss)/profit before tax BrEiAT(EE), 5 F (73,540) 7,136
Income tax expense s 9 (6,068) (12,655)
Loss for the year FANEBE 10 (79,608) (6,519)
Other comprehensive income Hith2mEUWA
ltems that may be reclassified HignpgeEFHERIER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange difference on translation BREGREEBREINE
of functional currency to e BB N ERR
presentation currency (6,316 177
Other comprehensive income FAEMEERA - kR
for the year, net of nil tax THIIE (6,316) 177
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEARE (85,924) (5,342)
Loss for the year attributable to: LA ARG FRESIE
— Owners of the Company B YNEIE =N (79,608) (6,619
Total comprehensive loss for the year UTNATEEFEAZE
attributable to: EIE4R%E
— Owners of the Company A VNEILZEPN (85,924) (6,342
Loss per share GREE
(expressed in Hong Kong cents) (BAEALZ )
- Basic —HAK 12 (10.40) (0.72)
~ Diluted — 12 (10.40) 0.72)

The notes on pages 56 to 158 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

I BN £ 56 168 B Z fif sE A e & B 15 3R
RZ—ED o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIz
As at 31 March 2016
R-ZB—XR"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XE —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BfaE FET FHBT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N ERE 14 15,048 21,862
Intangible assets mILEE 15 43,176 63,746
Gooduwill EES 16 = -
Security deposit RiEHE 17 4,546 4,010
62,770 89,618
Current assets REBEE
Inventories EN 19 47,403 20,481
Trade and other receivables JFEE LA £ 0 % LAt L
I8 20 2,425 3,069
Structured deposit EBMETR 22 = 27,923
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEEE 23 343,587 334,151
393,415 385,624
Current liabilities REBEE
Convertible bond designated as B BB ATFES R
financial liabilities at fair value ERRARE S/
through profit or loss BE TRRES 26 317,650 -
Trade and other payables e E R S E A S
RIB 24 52,668 51,680
Tax payable e A58 3,617 9,397
(373,935) (61,077)
Net current assets REEEFRE 19,480 324,547
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 82,250 414,165

50 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED SR &REZ AR AT




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z& B iR &R
As at 31 March 2016
REZB-—RF=ZA=1+—H

2016 2015
—B-RE —Z—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BfaE FET T
Capital and reserves BAREHE
Share capital R 25 76,537 76,537
Reserves i (3,650) 82,274
Equity attributable to owners of the RAREE AELER
Company 72,887 158,811
Non-current liabilities ERBAB
Convertible bond designated as BT AERAFESIERIT
financial liabilities at fair value EIEENEIE 2 &/
through profit or loss ABERkES 26 - 244,201
Provision for close down, restoration AR - (BZR RIRIBAK
and environmental costs BiE 27 2,808 2,762
Deferred tax liabilities EETIBEE 28 6,555 8,391
9,363 255,354
82,250 414,165

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 R-ZE—XNFANA-+—HEESFSHER

June 2016. RRETIES -
On behalf of the board REESE
Lo Fong Hung Wang Xiangfei
EBHAL THAR
Director Director
Ea =

The notes on pages 56 to 158 form an integral part of these financial ~ JIE N FE56ZE 168 B M i A 5% 5 W1 15 ¥
statements. RZ—HB °

Annual Report 2016 &4 51



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEREE=R

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-ZZ-—RF=ZA=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN 1PN 3
Exchange
Share Share Capital Statutory  translation Special - Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total
Bx  ROEE  ERRE  iERE 0 EXRE  NABE  RHER g
note254f))  (note 25afl))  (note 25 affi))  (note 25.afl)  (note 25 aly))
(Wosal) (Msaf) (WsFsali)) (Wi25ap) (ME25a0)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T Fin Thn T Fir Thn Tt T
At 1 Aprl 2014 R-E-RENE-A 76,537 191,534 14,882 9,861 18,365 27,143 (174,169) 164,153
Loss for the year i) - - - - - - (5,519 (5,519)
Bxchange diferenceon  HENEEE A2
translation of functional BRIERER
currency to presentation
currency - - - - 177 - - 177
Total other comprenensive ~ EREMZERALE
income for the year - - - - 177 - - 177
Total comprenensive loss ~ FRZEERLEE
for the year - - - - 177 - (5,519) (6,342
Transfer b - - - 2,102 - - 2,102) -
Appropriation for BEREEES AR
maintgnance and
production funds - - - 31,810 - - (31,310) -
Utlisation of maintenance & REEZS 7B
and production funds - - - (31,007) - - 31,007 -
At31 March 2015 RZE-1f
=h=t-A 76,537 191,534 14,882 12,266 18,542 27143 (182,093) 158,811
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY SGREf R8T R
For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-S-AF=A=t-ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN 1PN 3
Exchange
Share Share Capital Statutory  translation Special - Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total
Bx ROEE  ERRE  iRRE  EXRE  NABE  RHER ag
note254f))  (note254fi))  (note 25 ffi))  (note 25aflv)  (note 25 aly))
(Wskonal) (Mskosaf) (254l (H25al) (HE25al)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T THn Thr T Tir Thn Tt T
At1 April 2015 RZF-HEMA-A 76,537 191,534 14,882 12,266 18,542 27,143 (182,093 158,811
Loss for the year i) - - - - - - (79,608) (79,608)
Exchangediferenceon  RE I ERAZS|
translation of functional ERIERER
currency to presentation
currency - - - - (6,316) - - (6,316)
Total other comprehensive ~ FRE R ENALE
income for the year - - - - (6,316) - - (6,316)
Total comprehensiveloss — FRZABELEE
for the year - - - - (6,316) - (79,608) (85,924)
Transfer v - - - 2752 - - (2752 -
Appropriation for BEREEES AR
maintgnance and
production funds - - - 28,359 - - (28,359) -
Utlisation of maintenence  BERAERS 78R
and production funds - - - (28,647) - - 28,647 -
At 31 March 2016 RZB-~E
=R=1-H 76,537 191,534 14,882 14,780 12,226 27,143 (264,165) 72,887

The notes on pages 56 to 158 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

5| BN S5 56 158 B 2 M E iRk % 5 M 53R
RZ—8D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeHanE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-Z-AE=B=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Operating activities R
(Loss)/profit before tax BREAT(E18), = F (73,540) 7,136
Adjustments for: BT3B B EFE
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB REETE
equipment 4,898 4,742
Amortisation of intangible assets EBREAEEHEGIADEE
which was included cost of BFEA)
inventories sold 3,212 5,497
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREAERDE  BER
and property, plant and equipment RERERE 12,012 -
Provision for close down, restoration RAEA - 1828 NMIRIERK AR B
and environmental cost - (1,997)
Accretion expense IRIBFS 187 -
Change in fair value of structured HEEMER A TEE
deposit = (656)
Change in fair value of convertible BT AR AFEYRITEEZ
bond designated at fair value MR 2 AT ESH 2 A F
through profit or loss BEE) 73,449 38,970
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEMEEZEER
plant and equipment 87 4
Net exchange loss/(gain) PE R, (e ) 35 13,880 (741)
Interest income FLEWA (5,856) (6,277)
Operating cash flow before movements #EEL S B2 KERERE
in working capital 28,329 47,678
Increase in inventories FEEN (22,847) (2,503)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other FEWE S R B GBI/
receivables (3&n) 517 (1,261)
Increase in trade and other payables FEA &R N A A SR IE I N 3,610 1,981
Cash generated from operations REEBMBRS 9,609 45,895
Income tax paid B FTEH (13,006) (7,844)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RERK(FTA) B3RS FHE
operating activities (3,397) 38,051
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48R RER
For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-S-AF=A=t-ALFE

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Investing activities REEK
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME - BE MR
equipment (2,235) (1,616)
Placement of structured deposit FEEBIETR = (27,267)
Redemption of structured deposit AR 27,923 -
Interest received BFIE 5,856 5,277
Increase in security deposit RS IEN (749) (359)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREERRE/(FFR)REFE
investing activities 30,795 (23,965)
Net increase in cash and cash HeRBESEEEFEE ZEMFE
equivalents 27,398 14,086
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzHEeRESEHEER
beginning of year 334,151 319,460
Effect on foreign exchange EREE
rate changes (17,962) 605
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZ7BERBLEEER U5
year, represented by bank balances BRTEERES
and cash 343,587 334,151

The notes on pages 56 to 158 form an integral part of these financial 5| E A 56 2 158 B Mt i85k 5% 5 81 15 ¥R
statements. RZ2—HH e
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GENERAL

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the
opinion of the directors, the its parent company is Ascent Goal
Investments Limited (“Ascent Goal”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and its ultimate
holding company is New Bright International Development
Limited (“New Bright”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability. Its ultimate controlling party is Ms. Fung
Yuen Kwan, Veronica. These entities do not produce financial
statements available for public use.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (‘RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience of the shareholders as
the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in mining
and sales of coal.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standrads
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements. The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which for this
financial year and the comparative period, as permitted by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, continue to be those of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-Z-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

a)

b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3())), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Incomes Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-Z-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

b)

Business combinations (continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-Z-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

b)

Business combinations (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

b)

c)

Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated
to a cash-generating unit was acquired in a business
combination during the current annual period, that unit
shall be tested for impairment before the end of the
current annual period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf i3k &R Mzt
For the year ended 31 March 2016
ﬁ:—_—q /\\QEEHE_f'_E'JJ:fﬂg

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
d) Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any identified impairment loss.

e) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses and is amortised
based on the units of production method utilising only
recoverable coal reserves as the depletion base.

Exploration right

Exploration right is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost of the exploration right is transferred to mining right
upon the government’s approval of the mining license
and the commencement of the mining activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

f)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search
for mineral resources, the determination of technical
feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of
an identified resource.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs
which are directly attributable to:

- research and analysing historical exploration data;

- gathering exploration data through topographical,
geochemical and geophysical studies;

- exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling;

- determining and examining the volume and grade
of the resource;

- surveying transportation and infrastructure
requirements; and

- conducting market and finance studies

Expenditure during the initial exploration stage of
a project is charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
evaluation costs, including the costs of acquiring licenses,
are capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets on
a project-by-project basis pending determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project.

The capitalised costs are presented as either tangible or
intangible exploration and evaluation assets according
to the nature of the assets. Tangible and intangible
exploration and evaluation assets that are available for use
are depreciated/amortised over their useful lives. When a
project is abandoned, the related irrecoverable costs are
written off to profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

9

h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and building held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any
(see note 3(1)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R &= sk

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(continued)
h)  Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° It has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(continued)

TESTBER(H)

h)  Financial instruments (continued) hy &fITE(E)
Financial assets (continued) SREEE
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued) N FES R T IE an NIEFEZ
THEEE)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “change
in fair value of structured deposit” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner described
in note 5.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
security deposit, trade and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R &= sk

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at FV'TPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

= on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (assets or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the “change in fair value of
convertible bond” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 5.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables is subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

3.

70  NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED SR &REZARAT

TESTBER(H)

h)

ERMIE(E)

ERMAEBERRETIR(E

B -FAESRR I 1R s A TEZ

EHEEE)

WAFE TGS 2RBaEGT

EEZERAREKRINRIE
PR A TE AR A FESIR

WEERANEE EMEARE

—  ZEEERHERIAERE
Bt EskR A ERES
HRZ =B IBR

- ZEMAERNK—AESE
BEXTRABHRFM
E)z—#n  WREAK
BELEAFAZAREE
SR E R AR FEEE
B RFHERE - MAR
ZOBZEMERUILHA
NGRS

- BREE—EXZERA
ATETEZEH &
7 MAAGFERFE39
HAHBNEHEN(EE
HEE)REES/EAFE
SRR B MBI AR

BAFESIRLAERENEIEL
TRBERAFEIIRR - MEH
FHEEL 2 EARa BRI E
TR o RIBa R Wt B
BFREREAR A AN
ZHMBERRGAERLEMER
Wt RFAATABREERZ R
FEZF ] - RFETIREAH
AP 2 TTREE °

Az HaE
HiheRaBEERENERLE
MR - RREAEERF S
EIRE AT E -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Convertible bond
Convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL

Convertible bond issued by the Group (including related
embedded derivatives) is designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the entire convertible bond is measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-Z-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognsied in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognsied and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provision for close down, restoration and
environmental costs

One consequence of coal mining is land subsidence
caused by the resettlement of the land at the mining
sites. Depending on the circumstances, the Group
may relocate inhabitants from the mining sites prior
to conducting mining activities or the Group may
compensate the inhabitants for losses or damage from
close down and land subsidence after the sites have
been mined. The Group may also be required to make
payments for restoration, rehabilitation or environmental
protection of the land after the sites have been mined.

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling
and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of
residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas.
Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during
mine development or during the production phase,
based on the net present value of estimated future
costs. The cost is capitalised where it gives rise to future
benefits, whether the rehabilitation activity is expected to
occur over the life of the operation or at the time of close
down. The capitalised cost is amortised over the life of
the operation and the increase in the net present value of
the provision is included in borrowing costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

i)

)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Provision for close down, restoration and
environmental costs (continued)

Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment
is recorded against the carrying value of the provision
and related assets, and the effect is then recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a prospective basis
over the remaining life of the operation. Provisions for
close down and restoration costs do not include any
additional obligations which are expected to arise from
future disturbance. The cost estimates are reviewed
and revised at the end of the reporting period to reflect
changes in conditions.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

k)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
)] Impairment of assets (continued)
i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
)] Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade and other receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets; and
- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)] Impairment of assets (continued)
ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
)] Impairment of assets (continued)
ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

iii)  Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed at least annually
and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. Impairment test is performed in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
whenever one of the following events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

= The period for which the entity has the right
to explore in the specific area has expired
during the period or will expire in the near
future, and is not expected to be renewed;

- Substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
)] Impairment of assets (continued)
iii) Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

(continued)

- Exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led
to the discovery of commercially viable
quantities of mineral resources and the entity
has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

- Sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely
to proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely
to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

m) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

m) Revenue recognition (continued)
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
timely basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

n) Share-based payment

Share options granted by the Company to directors
and employees of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf i3k &R Mzt
For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k &= sk

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-E-RE=ZA=+—-HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

0) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

P)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

- exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks;
and

= exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81§33k i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

p)

q)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange translation reserve (attributing
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R &= sk

For the year ended 31 March 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

q)

Leased assets (continued)

i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease; and

land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
q) Leased assets (continued)

i)

i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 14. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 3(l). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

r

Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are carried at
their present values.

ii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognizes restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
1) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;

ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

t)

u)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s executive directors for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Reserve estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
coal reserves. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological, technical
and economic factors, including quantities, grades, production
techniques, recovery rates, production costs, transport costs,
commodity demand and commodity prices. Estimating the
quantity and/or grade of reserves requires the size, shape and
depth of ore bodies or fields to be determined by analysing
geological data such as drilling samples. This process may
require complex and difficult geological judgements and
calculations to interpret the data.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Reserve estimates (continued)

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate reserves
change from period to period, and because additional
geological data is generated during the course of operations,
estimates of reserves may change from period to period.
Changes in reported reserves may affect the Group’s financial
results and financial position in a number of ways, including the
following:

i) Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes in
estimated future cash flows.

ii) Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
the profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where the
useful economic lives of assets change.

if) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

iv)  The carrying value of deferred tax may change as a result
of changes in the asset carrying values as discussed
above.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Carrying value of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (exclude exploration and evaluation assets classified
as intangible assets) are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and impairment losses,
where appropriate. These carrying amounts are reviewed
for impairment whenever internal and external sources of
information indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In estimating
the recoverable amounts of assets, various assumptions,
including future cash flows to be associated with the non-
current assets and discount rates, are made. If future events
do not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable
amounts will need to be revised, and this may have an impact
on the Group’s results of operations or financial position.
The impairment assessment of the Group’s mining right and
exploration and evaluation assets included in intangible assets is
further discussed below.

Impairment of mining right and exploration and evaluation
assets

The Group assesses each cash generating unit annually to
determine whether any indication of impairment exists, which
included internal and external sources of information for
mining right, and facts and circumstances for exploration and
evaluation assets. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which
is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. These assessments require the use
of estimates and assumptions such as long-term commodity
prices, discount rates, future capital requirements, exploration
potential and operating performance. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value because quoted market prices are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which require significant judgement and estimates such
as sale volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.
Management has assessed its cash generating units as being
an individual mine site, which is the lowest level for which cash
flows are largely independent of other assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The Directors have to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The Directors
work closely with the qualified external valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 5 provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
various assets and liabilities.

Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write down of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging analysis of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use in production or
sales. The management estimates the net realisable value for
consumables and coals based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group carries out
an inventory review on a item-by-item basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.
During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no write-
down or reversal of write-down of inventories was recognised
in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of
inventories is HK$47,403,000 (2015: HK$20,481,000).

Provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs is determined by management based on their past
experience and best estimation of future expenditures, after
taking into account existing relevant PRC regulations. However,
in so far as the effect on the land and the environment from
current mining activities becomes apparent in future years, the
estimate of the associated costs may be subject to revision
from time to time. Details of the Group’s provision for close
down, restoration and environmental costs are set out in note
27.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets which arose
from deductible temporary differences as set out in note 28.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available against which the
assets can be utilised. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences generated are less
than expected, a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which will be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such reversal takes place. As at 31 March 2016, the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is HK$7,114,000 (2015:
HK$7,546,000).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. €mTH
a) Categories of financial instruments a) &RMIEHEA
2016 2015
—B-KREF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Financial assets designated at 8 AR AT EY BRI EIE R
FVTPL NERIEZ CREE - 27,923
Loans and receivables (including ~ B REWEIE(BEIRE &
cash and cash equivalents) ReFEIER) 349,871 341,103
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 2P #2722 R B E 18,108 14,129
Financial liabilities designated at 8 AR AT ENIRI B
FVTPL NREZEMmEE 317,650 244,201
b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b) MHEKREEBERBR
The Group’s major financial instruments include security TEEsTESRT ABERE
deposit, trade and other receivables, structured deposit, e BUWER R H M ERKK
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and 8 #EEEER RekRaes
convertible bond. Details of these financial instruments BIEHE - ENERRAMERK
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated HARAIRES - 252/ T
with these financial instruments include market risk BFFER SRR R - Hix
(currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk Lem T EMAERAREETS
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these R (BB R - MERBRE
risks are set out below. The management manages BER) - EERRERBES
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate B ZZMWH ZE R 2 BUR
measures are implemented on a timely and effective HRTX - ERETEREREZ
manner. —%J—WA © DATELR I B B U R
BUEEEHE ©
i)  Currency risk ) EEER
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign ARRHTHBERRBIN
currency expenditures, which expose the Group BHY - S ARNEBEAZH
to foreign currency risk. The Group does not have BER o $%@IEEH
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the INEEHRIER o AT B
management monitors foreign exchange exposure f%ﬁ%ﬁf’%?\\lﬁlﬁ ﬁ C AR
and will consider hedging significant foreign ERERZRE HPEKRI
currency exposure should the need arise. Bk o
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. @I E(E)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) HMBEREEBZERBURE
(continued)
i)  Currency risk (continued) ) EERER(GE

Certain receivables, cash and cash equivalents, AEEZETRERKZIE -
payables, and structured deposit and convertible RekReFEER &
bond of the Group are denominated in currencies NFRBEREBEFEREA

other than the functional currency of the group B ESY N ER TR
entity to which they relate. HENREE NI B

FHE -
The following table shows the Group’s exposure TRBARKEBNKEE
at the end of the reporting period to currency fE 45 R B B W RR LAE
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities BERNGEEEUIINZEE
denominated in a currency other than the functional STECEESBEMEL
currency of the entity to which they relate. ZEERE -

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Assets BE 221,230 136,978

Liabilities BE 318,586 245,871
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk of HKS.

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and
decrease in HK$ against each group entity’s
functional currency. 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A negative number below indicates
an increase in loss for the year and accumulated
losses of the Group (2015: increase in loss for the
year and accumulated losses of the Group) where
each group entity’s functional currency weaken
5% (2015: 5%) against HK$. For a 5% (2015: 5%)
strengthening of each group entity’s functional
currency against HK$, there would be an equal and
opposite impact.

5.

ERIAE)
b) EAMEREEEBERER (R
) AR
FRE AT

SEERIZAXBERLLZ
SNEE R

TRFNAEEE R H
THEEEEE I
B ZERFYREN(ZF
—AhF 5%) 2HREE -
5%(ZZ—HF :5%) 5
mMEBEEABRIPER
HNEE LB BT 2 SRR E L
K WIREIEEHINEE
Ko BEE 2T -
BRE 7 AT 2 B 38 A SN
SHMEZAEEE®EE -
WRINEER 2 5% (= F
—ARF :5%)EBFHER
FRZ2HE - ZEEERE
B EREABLRE
5% (=T —FF :5%)F
TRABREAEEFR
BEEEEREN =
—RF AEEFAEIE
MEFEEEM - WS
EEERI2NEEENSE
TTHES%( ZE— R 4F
5%) - BliERKEEEEER
MBEERZFE -

2016 2015
—B-KREF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Profit or loss and it E =P 58
accumulated losses Sy i (4,868) (6,840)
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank balances and security deposit
carried at prevailing market rate. The Group has
not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not
formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 March 2016 and accumulated losses as at
the reporting date would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,741,000 (2015: approximately
HK$1,691,000). This was mainly attributable to the
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
balances of the Group.

5.
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B o ANER B3 4 ) E X
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BRI
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REFZHNERERETE -
MR RRNEE HE
BREZAEBESHRTA
REEFEIGREER -

i FI & 58, T 850 MEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

Equity price risk

The Group was required to estimate the fair value
of the convertible bond (see note 26) at the end of
the reporting period with changes in fair value to
be recognised in the profit or loss. The fair value
adjustment would be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the changes in the
Company’s share market price.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below had been
determined based on the exposure to the
Company’s share price risk at the reporting date
only. If the Company’s share price had been 5%
higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year (as a result
of changes in fair value of convertible bond)
would increase and accumulated losses would
increase by approximately HK$8,585,000 (2015:
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year would
increase and accumulated loss would increase
by approximately HK$6,175,000) during the
year ended 31 March 20186. If the input of share
price to the valuation model of the derivatives
embedded in the convertible bond had been 5%
lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year (as a result
of changes in fair value of convertible bond)
would decrease and accumulated losses would
decrease by approximately HK$8,584,000 (2015:
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year would
decrease and accumulated losses would decrease
by approximately HK$6,743,000) during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

5.

ERIAE)
b) EAMEREEEBERER (R

i)

PR A B E R

AEBANRE REE
BT Al E 7 (M
26) 2 AFE - WA
RN EZS - X FE
HEKZ (AR BRE) AR
AR MEZE) 2 IEm K

BETE -

HERESHT
TR E DT ERER
WwE BHFTAS 2 AR A
BRERKRETE o WAQA
BE B FF5% » mATAE
S B IF T - BIRE
BEHz—_ZE—-— X F=H
“t+t—HALEFEZHRBIE
FREE (VRS A RkE
A2 NFEZE) EAME
ST 1E 532 IN498,585,000
BIL(ZE—HF : A&
B 2 B F NI 518
nmEFEBEEE Y
6,175,000/ 7T ) ° fisj A] #2
BEHFANETETAGEE
B EBEZRER AR
FIES% @ AT KA &K
HIETE - AAEEEZE
—E—-RE=ZA=+—H
IEFEZBRBEZEFANERE
(TRE IR ES 2 AT
EE28) BRLMITE
1B T 498,584,000 7T
(ZZ2—RF : AEEZRK
HeTFABEERD MR
s E R 2 496,743,000
HBIT) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5. BT R(H)

b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) MHEKREEBZERBR(E
(continued)
iv)  Liquidity risk iv) REEEERK
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EERBESREBM
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash S AEBERKLERIR
equivalents deemed adequate by the management MR EEEENER
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the RBEREHRZKE AR
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. SEEXBREES - WK
KRSRERB 2 FE -
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining TREELAEESHAEE
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. FABHEEHBE 2715 -
The tables have been drawn up based on the EBYRBIEANEERHT]
contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial W ERNF o HF B
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the ZERBAEET KRB
Group can be required to pay. The table includes SREME - JIREAFF
both interest and principal cash flows. BERIFERERE
Within ~ More than
1 year 1 year 2 years Total
oron but less than to undiscounted Carrying
demand 2years 5years  cashflows amount
—ERig ichiohetid MEE  AMEES
EZX EOREE ik:3 hEAH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
TER TAR TAR TEn TAn
31 March 2016 ZE-RE=f=t-A
Trade and other payables RS REMENTE 18,108 - - 18,108 18,108
Convertible bond designated as %5 AR AT EJIE
financial liabilties at FVTPL BHBRNREL
SREE TRRES 200,000 - - 200,000 317,650
218,108 - - 218,108 335,758
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z-AFZA=+—-HLEE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) SRIAE)
b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) WFEREREBERBR(E)
(continued)
iv)  Liquidity risk (continued) iv) REEEERK(E)
Within More than
1 year 1 year 2 years Total
oron  butless than to  undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years Syears  cashflows amount
T 3 MEE  AEREE
EEX  BIRWEF IF REMR e
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TiEn TR TiEn TR
31 March 2015 “E-afZfA=t-A
Trade and other payables ERNEHRAMENTE 14,129 - - 14,129 14,129
Convertiole bond designated as ~ #5F AR ATESIBY £ 8%
financial iabiltes at FVTPL MREz e RER THR
E% - 200,000 - 200,000 244,201
14,129 200,000 - 214,129 258,330
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BE-Z-

/\fF—E)EJ E+_ E'Jti]g

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

v)

Credit risk

The Group

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and structured
deposit is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

5.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE=-%®

5.

/\QEE)EJ E+_ E'thﬂg

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c)

Fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2014
and 2015.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

The Group uses an independent valuer to perform
valuations of financial instruments which are categorised
into Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Valuation reports with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement are prepared by the independent valuer at
each interim and annual reporting date, and are reviewed
and approved by the financial controller. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the financial
controller is held twice a year to coincide with the
reporting dates.

5.

SRTAE)
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. €@MTHE(E)
c) Fair value (continued) c) ATEE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEER(E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2016 categorised into
RZB-—RE=ZA=+—-HZAVYEFESE

Fair value at
31 March
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=B—R%F
EFEr=1FE
ZDYE E—& et 1 E=R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TEx T THET
Recurring fair value REMDNFETE
measurements
Liabilities: 8%
Convertible bond BT BRATESIRL
designated as financial ~ FEEZENERIEZ &
liabilities at FVTPL BECTRRES 317,650 - - 317,650
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2015 categorised into
RZZE—RF=A=+—HZAYEFENE
Fair value at
31 March
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZ—HEF
=A=t—-A
AT e Rt 2=
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T T T
Recurring fair value REMATETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Structured deposit BREMEER 27,923 - 27,923 -
Liabilties: BE:
Convertible bond T BRATEY BRI
designated as financial ~ FEEZANEE 2 @
liabilities at FVTPL BETRRES 244,201 - - 244,201
During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, BE_ZE—RNFR-ZT-—HF=

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c)

Fair value (continued)

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements
The fair value of the structured deposit is determined by
discounting the contractual cash flows based on forward
exchange rates (from observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period) and contracted
interest rates, at a rate that reflect the credit risk of the
Group or the counterparties as appropriate.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
The fair value of the convertible bond is equal to the
summation of the fair value of the liability component
and conversion option component, calculated using
discounted cash flows and binomial model, respectively.
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
convertible bond are as follows:

i) The estimation of risk free rate has made reference
to the yield of Exchange Fund Bill with same
duration as the convertible bond;

ii) The estimation of volatility for the underlying
share price has considered the historical price
movements of those companies engaged in similar
industry;

i)~ The discount rate was arrived at based on the
Company’s credit rating and select comparable
corporate bonds with similar maturity and credit
risk to derive the range of comparable yield to
maturity as of date of valuation and the median
range has been adopted;

iv)  The estimation of dividend yield is based on
historical dividend payment of the Company.

5.
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. €@MTHE(E)
¢) Fair value (continued) c) APFEE
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements ERE=ZHATHIFEZEHN
(continued) (%48)

AERHEMRRZ TEZ2 8
FIgn

Major parameter adopted in the calculation of the fair
value are summarised below:

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

—E-XRE —E-RfF

=g=+-8 =A=+-H

Stock price & E HK$0.63/87t  HK$0.437% 7T
Exercise price 1IfEfE HK$0.20 7t  HK$0.20/ 7T
Risk free rate B ) = 0.276% 0.403%
Discount rate ALIR & 7.39% 8.58%
Dividend yield g 8% 0% 0%
Time to expiration EI AR 0.95year £  1.95 years
Stock price volatility BRENE 116.09% 46.81%

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is expected stock price volatility. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected stock price volatility. If the expected stock price
volatility has been 5% higher with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year and accumulated
losses would increase by approximately HK$1,531,000
(2015: HK$202,000) during the year ended 31 March
2016. If the expected stock price volatility has been 5%
lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year and accumulated losses would decrease
by approximately HK$1,554,000 (2015: HK$413,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

c)  Fair value (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
The movement during the year in the balance of financial

SRTAE)

c)

ATE(H)

ERE=RATEFEZHE
FE-MAVEFEZERBES

liability of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: B FREFHINT -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Convertible bond (note 26): AR E S (FiEE26) - HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
At beginning of the year REH] 244,201 205,231
Total loss recognised in RIBRTPER ZESEEHE !
profit or loss:
Fair value change charged to RERR 2 AT EZ
the profit or loss,included in a B st AGRAaBEIHE
line item of consolidated b2 mEURER R 2 F878
statement of profit or loss and I8 H
other comprehensive income 73,449 38,970
Loss/(gain) on translation of B AINE FHE 2 TR
convertible bond denominated KREFREEE 2B
in a foreign currency into the B (M) - FEAITR
functional currency, included in REMEEER
administrative and other operating
expenses 13,831 (875)
Total loss included in profit or loss STAFREREZ EIEEEE
for the year 87,280 38,595
Total (gain)/loss recognised in other REM2E WA PR >
comprehensive income (W) EEEE
Exchange difference on translation of & IHEe EH & 25| &8
functional currency to presentation FREA 2 INEZFE
currency (13,831) 375
At end of the year RER 317,650 244,201
Total loss for the year relating to: FANBEERE -
— financial liability held at the end of ~ — R4 EARI 4L RIS A
reporting period, under change = =N WAL il
in fair value of convertible bond BEATFEEZF) 73,449 38,970
— financial liability held at the end — RS BRERE S
of reporting period, under ZERMBEZITER
administrative and other HihgZ e A
operating expenses 13,831 (875)
87,280 38,595
Included in other comprehensive STABRENREEE A2
income arising on translation of BERBFEA 2 EMEE
functional currency to WA
presentation currency (13,831) 375
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

6. REVENUE 6.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
coal sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns,
discounts allowed and value added tax. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue is as follows:

Wz

Wek fE AN BSHE R R T HINE PR
FRE - IMBEBRIEEHRERZER
K JEWIR © AREZWADHIAT

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FhHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Sales of coal SHE R 59,841 124,463
7. OTHER REVENUE 7. EHitukz
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Interest income on bank deposit RITIE R F WA 5,856 5,277
Others Hib 10,159 5,739
16,015 11,016
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. nEEBR

The Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision makers who are also
the executive directors, for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, is more specifically focused
on the types of goods delivered and services provided by the
Group’s operating divisions.

Coal mine business is the only reportable operating segment
from which the Group derived its revenue from sale of coal.
Accordingly, no further segment information is provided.

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location where the goods are delivered. The Group’s
turnover and results from operations mainly derived from
activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group are also
located in the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical information is
provided.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEER(E)
Information about major customers FREEERPZER
Revenue from external customers contributing 10% or more of AU ZE10% A E 2 BovE P 2 Uk
the total revenue is as follow: WA
2016 2015
—EB—RE —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Customer A ZEA 21,264 34,068
Customer B ZFB * 23,508
Customer C ZFEC 8,192 *
Customer D 25D 6,713 *
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the * REBEE-Z—XR"FH=_T—HF=HA
total revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2016 or =+—HILFE - ZEERE &R
2015. EEBUEE10%3 A E -
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FISBiBExX
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Tax expense comprises: FEBiEZasE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax HENEH
— current year —REE - -
Tax in other jurisdictions Efth el AR 2 18
— current year —REE 7,579 13,482
— under-provision in prior years —BEFERETR - 1,351
7,579 14,833
Deferred tax (Note 28) EIEF A (PI7E28) (1,511) (2,178)
6,068 12,655

HRBEE—T-—A"FR-_FT-—AF=
A=t—BLMEFER  XERE
BB AT ERTOR A - R B R
B BHREABENERIELEE -
HARBES ZERBEH - RIFE
IS BIZ (4 5T R ) 2 16.5% 2K

| At
Al °

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as there was no estimated
assessable profits being derived from Hong Kong for both
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. Where there is Hong
Kong assessable profits, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits.
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BE-—F—-AE=ZHA=+—-HLEE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9.
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda and is exempted
from income tax in Bermuda. The Company’s subsidiary
established in the British Virgin Islands is exempted from
income tax in the British Virgin Islands.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

Fris iR (&)

AR BIR B 5 E E  A AL 2 R
MBRIERMBH - NARNEBER
BER B ARERLH RIS
BRRESMEH

BEFEARLMBLEMER A
([EEMBBE]D REEMSREZ
BHEiEG PR BARRMESE
R AB25% °

AFEERBRTHEGAESREMS
AR PR R(E8) 5 F 2 &
BRINE -

2016 2015
—E—XREF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
(Loss)/profit before tax BrEiRI(E51E), R F) (73,540) 7,136
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax, LRAERBERRES(SE),
calculated at the rates applicable to A R ERAE
(loss)/profit in the countries concerned BRI (E1R), S8R 2
LERIE (11,705) 5,780
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ NMEHF S 2 FiE £
tax purposes 17,460 8,036
Tax effect of deductible temporary BERTER Z A
difference previously not recognised ER BB E = (2,098)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERMRA 2 IR 2
purpose (554) (428)
Tax effect of temporary differences and KRER T FREE=LE L FHIE
tax losses not recognised Bz HETE 867 14
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR = 1,351
Tax expense for the year AREEFRIERY 6,068 12,655
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. FREE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): EREEeR S GtA) T EI&IE -
2016 2015
t AT —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Amount of inventories sold HEFEZSH 35,309 69,297
Amount of inventories recognised as HRERASI 2 FESRE
an expense 35,309 69,297
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BINA(ESHE(MFE13)
remuneration (Note 13)) 53
Basic salaries and allowances AEARF S M2 9,475 9,712
Contributions to defined TERBEFURARGTEI 2 5K
contribution retirement plan 1,137 1,098
10,612 10,810
Depreciation of property, Y - B MERIETE
plant and equipment 4,898 4,742
Amortisation of intangible assets ER B E#E 8,877 9,602
Less: Amounts capitalised in inventories & : T E &AL S5 (5,665 (4,105)
Amounts included in cost of sales ST AHEK AR 3,212 5,497
Auditor’s remuneration BTN &
— audit services — 2 ERT 710 710
— other services —H AR 300 481
1,010 1,191
Operating leases charge B ERRY 2,603 2,557
Net exchange loss/(gain) on financial BAF BRI IR S NEE IR
liabilities at FVTPL ZEMmBBEsELER
(Y23) %8 13,831 (3795)
Other net exchange gain E Ao PE H W a F 58 (6,730) (366)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEMREESE
plant and equipment 87 4
Impairment loss on intangible assets and EFEERME - MEK&
property, plant and equipment HfE R EEE 12,012 -
Interest income on financial assets not TN A F(EFIRIEBREA
at fair value through profit or loss BRIE 2 &R EE 2 H WA (5,856) (5,277)
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

11. DIVIDEND
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the current reporting period (2015: Nil).

12. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted loss per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is based
on the following data:

11.

12.

IR E
REBE_ZT—A"F=-A=1t—HLL#F
JE RBE IR N TN B RIR AR - M
B 7N 3R o5 H ) 4 R DA 2R O A S Ak A
EARE(ZZE—HF : &) -

BRER

SRERREHBR

RARRE AEAEFRGRERK S
SERRIYIRIE T FI SIS E

2016 2015
—E—REF —Z—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAET
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic and UGt EGRREAR REE
diluted loss per share (Loss for the B BE(RRREAR A
year attributable to owners of the FEMRFNEE)
Company) (79,608) (5,519)
Number Number
of shares of shares
RBEE 4=
Weighted average number of LR INETIFE
ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FLAEHE G RRE A N #E
shares for the purpose of basic 518 2 B i T
and diluted loss per share 765,373,584 765,373,584

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 March 2016 and 2015 does not assume the conversion
of convertible bond since its conversion would result in a
decrease in loss per share. The basic and diluted loss per
share are the same.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 13. EERSREEAESHS

EMOLUMENTS

a) Directors’ emoluments a) EEi&
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven EffkENSELtR(ZE—h
(2015: seven) directors were as follows: FER)EZZHeNT
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE-—ZE—ARE=ZA=+—H1L

S5

Other emoluments

HitE&
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
2 =4 RIREF
e REAMER B (8N #zm

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx FTRET FERT FET

Executive directors: #{TE= :

Lo Fong Hung EHA - 720 18 738
Wang Xiangfei FEAR - 480 18 498
Kwan Man Fai B 1E 480 - - 480

Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors:

Wong Man Hin, =X H

Raymond 288 - - 288
Lam Ka Wai, Graham  #ZE 288 - - 288
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey — BRiEfE 288 - — 288
Xu Xiao Sheng BN

(resigned on (RZE—RF

21 January 2016) —A=Z+—H

BFE) 231 - - 231

1,575 1,200 36 2,811
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

13. EENSREEAEMNE(E)

a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) a) EEME(4E)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_ZE-RAF=ZA=+—HL
FRE
Other emoluments
Hibiie
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
Hre o R RIREF
e REAMEFR FTEIHR HazE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T TR TR T

Executive directors: #{T=%= :
Lo Fong Hung AL - 720 18 738
Wang Xiangfe F A - 480 18 498
Kwan Man Fai B E 480 - - 480
Independent non- BAUFEHITESE !
executive directors:
Wong Man Hin, B
Raymond 288 - - 288
Lam Ka Wai, Graham % & 288 - - 288
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey — [Ri2#E 288 = = 288
Xu Xiao Sheng BN
(appointed on (R=ZZ—h%F
14 July 2015) +A+mEA
&) 206 - - 206
1,550 1,200 36 2,786
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

13. EENSREEAEMNE(E)

b)  Senior management’s emoluments b) EREEAEMSE
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in RAEBEREZESHATH =
the Group, three (2015: three) were directors of the H(ZE—RF : ZR)BARF
Company whose emoluments are set out above. The EE HPSHR X - % TW
emoluments of the remaining two (2015: two) highest H(ZTE—RHF MB)mSFHA
paid individuals were as follows: TZBEmT
2016 2015
t AT —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Salaries, allowances and e o R R EAMET
other benefits 1,528 1,119
Retirement benefits scheme RRENET B R
contributions 30 32
1,558 1,151
The emoluments of the two (2015: two) highest paid MG (—E—HF : MB)E=E
employees fall in the following band: EBEZMENF TN & E :
Number of individuals
AE
2016 2015
—B-AE —ZE-NhfF
Nil - HK$1,000,000 21,000,000/ 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8TE
1,500,000 7T 1 -
c)  No emoluments have been paid or payable by the Group c) RE T—XF=ZA=+—H

to the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the
two years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

M-E-—RAF=A=1+—HIM
BEFE  ARELERNARFE
ERABRSITALATHEN
Z WS AR EF I B AR SR B =X
RINBEAREER 2 RE) - HIER
BeH 2 BERAR(E -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold equipment
land and Plant and and motor
buildings machinery vehicles Total
HELHE B
BT RBEREE RERAE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Cost R
At 1 April 2014 RZE—-NFMA—H 8,813 25,440 5,301 39,554
Exchange realignment B 54, % 16 41 9 66
Additions ANE 2,759 1,513 103 4,375
Disposals e - (10) (7) (17)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-RAF=A=+—H 11,588 26,984 5,406 43,978
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMNA—H 11,588 26,984 5,406 43,978
Exchange realignment B % 3% (578) (1,339) (296) (2,213)
Additions RE 353 348 1,534 2,235
Disposals = - - (270) (270)
At 31 March 2016 R-_E-—~F=A=+—H 11,363 25,993 6,374 43,730
Accumulated depreciation, ZEHTE  BEREE
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—-NEFMA—H 2,662 11,394 3,302 17,358
Exchange realignment B 34, % 5 18 6 29
Charge for the year AEERH 461 3,252 1,029 4,742
Eliminated on disposals HERFE = ©) (7) (19)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-—RAE=A=+—H 3,128 14,658 4,330 22,116
At 1 April 2015 RZE—HFMA—R 3,128 14,658 4,330 22,116
Exchange realignment B 5 3% (206) (816) (232) (1,254)
Charge for the year AEELH 1,315 2,978 605 4,898
Impairment loss wEEE 1,219 1,569 317 3,105
Eliminated on disposals i E RS 48 - - (183) (183)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—~F=A=1+—H 5,456 18,389 4,837 28,682
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—~F=A=1+—H 5,907 7,604 1,637 15,048
At 31 March 2015 R-E-—8F=A=1+—A 8,460 12,326 1,076 21,862
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The above property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the
shorter of the

term of the

leases or 3.33%

Plant and machinery 10% to 25%
Furniture, equipment and motor vehicles 10% to 25%

The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land and building is

14. W% - BERZE(E)

Eil¥x - BEMRBLEREEZT
DI REHRITE -

HELREF RHE
FHRTL

3.33% 2 fd

BEE

[R5 B i 2 10%225%
BRI - BERTE 10%Z£25%

HELHMEFREEITWT

as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZT—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Outside Hong Kong, TLRABEBIRIN -
held under medium term lease LR AEE 5,907 8,460

In view of significant decrease in coal demand, the directors
of the Company consider that the recoverable amount
(considered to be the same as the value in use (“VIU”) of the
cash generating units (“CGUs”), mentioned in note 15(ii) below)
of the property, plant and equipment is lower than the carrying
amount. Therefore, the directors of the Company have made
an impairment of HK$3,105,000 to write down the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment.

ZRIRRFREETR ARAE
ER/ME  BERERBEZATKEE
2 (B a0 TP = 1.5(i) BT L 4 4R 45 R ER
TEABN(IREEAENV])Z2ER
BE-ZOERERKEE - Bt - A2
AE F B {E R E3,105,0007%8 7T LA M
BE - BB MREZREE
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE

Exploration and

evaluation assets Mining right Total
BARRAGEE R o)
(Note i, iii & iv) (Note i, i, &iv)
GER) GERY)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT AL
Cost B
At 1 April 2014 RZE-NEFMA—H 50,876 107,690 158,566
Exchange realignment R E 82 173 255
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-AF=A=+—H 50,958 107,863 158,821
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMA—H 50,958 107,863 158,821
Exchange realignment I 7, % (2,516) (5,325) (7,841)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF¥=A=1+—H 48,442 102,538 150,980
Accumulated amortisation and ~ RitEERAEE
impairment
At 1 April 2014 RZZ—NFMA—H 50,876 34,448 85,324
Exchange realignment [ AR 82 67 149
Charge for the year KEESH - 9,602 9,602
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RFE=A=+—H 50,958 44117 95,075
At 1 April 2015 RZE-AFMA—H 50,958 44117 95,075
Exchange realignment [ 5 i (2,516) (2,539) (5,055)
Charge for the year AEERH - 8,877 8,877
Impairment loss REBE - 8,907 8,907
At 31 March 2016 RZE-—"E=A=1+—H 48,442 59,362 107,804
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"EF=A=1+—H - 43,176 43,176
At 31 March 2015 R-E-AF=A=+—H = 63,746 63,746
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

i)

i)

The mining right and the exploration and evaluation assets acquired
as part of a business combination during the year ended 31
March 2010 were initially recognised at their respective fair values
on acquisition with reference to a professional valuation using
discounted cash flow method based on the operating environment
of each of the operating entities.

Mining right

At the end of each reporting period, the management conducted
impairment review of the mining right. As at 31 March 2016 with
reference to valuations conducted by an independent professional
valuer using discounted cash flow method.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, given that the global
economy was slowing down and China’s economy was under
downward pressure, there was oversupply of coal leading to the
continuing decrease in coal price during the year, the directors of
the Company had estimated the recoverable amounts of the non-
current mining assets of the coal mining business of the Group (the
“Coal Mining Assets”) for purposes of impairment testing.

In such connection, the Company engaged Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent professional valuer, to assess the value in
use (‘VIU”) of the remaining cash generating units (“CGUs”) of the
Coal Mining Assets. In assessing the VIU of the CGUSs, the future
cash flows of the coal mining businesses which cover the remaining
periods of the minding right of the mine are discounted to the related
present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to such
business. Parameters used in the projected cash flows included
but were not limited to selling prices and sales volumes of coal,
production cost and other expenses, capital expenditure, production
plan and discount rate, respectively, which reflected the current
conditions of the market and the Group and estimated trend in the
future.

When evaluating the appropriate discount rate for each of the
CGUs, the CAPM had been used. Under CAPM, the appropriate
expected rate of return was the sum of the risk-free return and the
equity risk premium required by investors to compensate for the
market risk assumed. In addition, the expected rate of return of the
CGUs was expected to be affected by other firm specific risk factors
that are independent of the general market. The cost of equity was
determined by the risk-free rate, market return, and estimated beta
of the CGUs and firm specific risk factors. The pre-tax discount rate
of 26% (2015: 37%) used in assessing the VIU of the CGUs of the
Coal Mining Assets.

15.

BEE(E)

Pt -
i)

i)

HE-T-TF=A=T—ALFER
WA RBRRF SAE AR
A5 - YSREEEEEREE
B2 EHARSRE AL B
1 E R & &2 AT AR

=7
e

ERUERE

RERSHMERE  EEEHERE
HEETTRERR - R-F—XNF=HA
=T -BE2RBLEXGEMERER
BRSRENEELZEE -

REBEE-_T-RF=ZA=1+—HILF
[E SRR BRESE AR K rh Bl BT B
TS RSB SRS BURR B
RERNFE Y  ARARERDTMEA
SEBEREEB IR REEE (THRE
GiE]) 2 AT e B AERE AR,

Ht - ARFERIEB I B EME
BRI ERARMEEREENR
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BE(EREE]  -RIEREELE
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oo ko - FEERIR S EA B TEHAE
MR ZEBEMIS AN E M EE R
TERBEZFE o Em A TIIRER
AR« migER RIS ELEEN (G
AR AREUREES TRBESE
E o RMAREEECRSELBNZFE
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BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

i)

i)

Mining right (Continued)

Based on the assessment, the VIU of the CGUs of the Coal Mining
Assets was HK$57,980,000 as at 31 March 2016, resulting an
impairment loss of the Coal Mining Assets totalling HK$12,012,000
should be made for the property, plant and equipment and the
mining right. The Group allocated the impairment, based on
their relative carrying amounts amongst the Coal Mining Assets.
Accordingly, impairment for items of property, plant and equipment
of HK$3,105,000 and impairment for mining right of HK$8,907,000
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during 2016.

As at 31 March 2015, the management conducted impairment
review of the mining right with reference to valuations conduced
by an independent professional valuer using discounted cash flow
method, the management expected that the recoverable amount of
the mining right exceeded its carrying amount.

Exploration and evaluation assets

The exploration and evaluation assets represented the exploration
right possessed by the Group. For the year ended 31 March 2013,
the exploration and evaluation assets were fully impaired in profit
or loss based on a professional valuation, which concluded that no
defined or reliable future economic benefit could be drawn due to
the following facts and circumstances:

the exploration right had been renewed twice and the expiry
date of it would be on 20 February 2014;

- according to a legal opinion obtained by the Group, that
under PRC law and regulation the exploration right could only
be renewed twice, and no further renewal for period beyond
20 February 2014 could be obtained;

- On 19 March 2014, the relevant government bureau
exercised an administrative discretionary right and granted a
renewed exploration right with valid period from 25 February
2014 to 26 February 2016;

- On 19 May 2016, the Company further obtained a renewal
permit from Xinjiang Land Department granting the renewal of
the Exploration Permit with valid period from 5 April 2016 to 5
April 2017;

- the management re-assessed the status and considered
that the Group is not able to obtain a mining right prior to the
expiry of the exploration right; and

- that no defined or reliable future economic benefit could
be drawn based on the current progress relating to the
Optimization and Upgrading Plan (as defined in iv below).

15.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

i)

iv)

Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, despite the successful renewal
of the exploration right, with reference to a professional valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer, the Group
concluded that no defined or reliable future economic benefit could
be drawn from it and the impairment loss should not be reversed
with the following reasons:

- The Group intends to hold the exploration right until the
Optimization and Upgrading Plan is approved;

- due to the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, it is not feasible
and practicable for the Group to obtain a mining right; and

- that defined or reliable future economic benefit could not be
drawn based on the current progress of the Optimization and
Upgrading Plan.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the “Xinjiang Land
Department”) informed the Group that pursuant to the instructions of
the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC, the
Xinjiang Land Department is planning a management restructuring of
different coal mines in the Xiheishan Mining Area (the “Optimization
and Upgrading Plan”), where the Group’s Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal
Mine (the “Kaiyuan Mine”) and Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine (the “Zexu
Mine”) are situated.

On 14 March 2012, a proposal (the “Proposal”) was issued by
the People’s Government of Mulei Kazak Autonomous County,
where the Group’s Kaiyuan Mine is located, to the Administrative
Bureau of Coal Industry of Changji Prefecture (the “Changji
Administrative Bureau”). According to the Proposal, which is part
of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the mining area of the
Kaiyuan Mine, where the Group is now conducting mining activities,
is proposed to be increased to 4.12 square kilometers, with the
estimated additional coal resources of approximately 131.18 million
tonnes. In the Proposal, it is also stated that the production capacity
of the Kaiyuan Mine will increase from 0.9 million tonnes per year to
3 million tonnes per year.

15.

BIEE(R)
FisE : ()

i)

iv)

B R R A EE ()
RZE—RERZZT—RF=A=1—
B BERWEEDRE  K2RBL
BEAEMEHR BXMEER  AKE
iEwR o ARE B RGEERSHRER
AJ S4B A s MORE RS 1B N R - T
ERATRA :

- ARERSAUREEEZEL
FHRF RS

- ERELABFR - AKER
ARG REELIFDERT
K

- ERBLEALTRZBANE
g BERERRG RN
B o

BHE"ZT-—F=A=+t—HILHFE"

Eg TR s RE T ERE(T B

TERREDAEAREE  RigFEER

BRMBEZEG 2R MERLE

REEE RERILERATREREELE

BEERE(BIEARFTRE]D  ~EH

Z SRR R ([ SURBERE ) Mo B8R

R (BB DR ZRE A

R-ZZE——F=ZA+WTAB - XEE
BRBREZAREREREAEZAR
BEFmEEMERIXERR(EFE
BRDELES(TEE]D - BEAEBL
FRFR—BH 2 EH - NEBIEETT
FREE 2 YRR 2 IR mER S
WEA12FH AR - EEHEREROA
131.18 B B WA o RNEHEFB » IR5I8E
BB EEHET0IRENEES
FIEEME ©
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. B EE(E)
Notes: (continued) MiEE - (88)
iv)  (continued) iv) (&)

The Group received a letter dated 13 June 2012 issued by the
Changji Administrative Bureau (the “13 June Letter”) informing the
updated status of the Management Restructuring Plan. According to
the 13 June Letter, the following proposals in relation to the Group’s
Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine (the “Updated Proposals”) have
been submitted to the working group head office for coal industry
structural upgrade work of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region for
consideration and approval:

- The Group’s Kaiyuan Mine will be restructured and upgraded,
and the exploration rights in the Zexu Mine granted to the
Group will be terminated; and

- The mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where the Group is now
conducting mining activities, is proposed to be increased
from 1.1596 square kilometers to 4.12 square kilometers,
with the estimated additional coal resources of approximately
131.18 million tonnes.

The directors of the Company are of the view that as the above
proposals are still subject to final approval by the People’s
Government of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, it is uncertain
whether the above changes will be materialised. The Group will
engage an independent qualified valuer to value the additional coal
resources when the final approval is obtained.

FEEZEETEERRBMERSE
ERBZRIBERMBELZ AR
E-_FRNAT=AZHHTRA+=
Hfr]) - REANA+T=R&f - T5
BRAASEFURKETRE SR BRIE 25
(MEF2R ) ERENRETR A AR
BRE R AR BT AR TR EE A
NEVEELL

- AREBEZSURBERESBE R
& MEFAEEZZFBER
BV RS AR - ]

- AEEFETHETESZIR
B2 FAEREEEZ B 1.1596
FHRABHWELI2FHRE - 4
FHEEERYA131.18 5 BN -

AAREER /AN LAERDEFH
BHREBBIRARBITREEL - &
FulEEHEREE BRI ZE  fHEX
FREAE  AEERRBBLEER
HERM SRR A RETTHE -

16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
HK$’000
FHET
Cost AR
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and R-ZE—OFMPA—A -
31 March 2016 “E—RF=ZA=+—HK
—E—XF=A=+—H 37,469
Impairment RE
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and RZZE—MFmMA—H -
31 March 2016 “E-RF=A=+t—HK
—E—-R"F=A=+—H (37,469)

Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=A=+—H
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RFE=HA=+—H
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ﬁ%%%ﬁ@' ;
y

16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. EE (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to these CGUs is as follows:

R AR - HREZSRS
EEEER Y AEEEENT

2016 2015

= i —TRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRz AT

Qitai County Zexu Trading FRBREZEHERREE
Company Limited ANRI([MEREFHER S
(FEeREEREAREERR) EAEBA])

(‘E&E CGU)

Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal NESZNFRHERERER
Company Limited NEI([HRER e ESE
(REZIREREREET AR BAL)

(“Mining CGU”)

The goodwill arising on acquisition of Qitai County Zexu
Trading Company Limited (3 & & 2B & AR & T A 7)) and
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Company Limited (/< £2 % sl R /&
RAEREZEAT) was fully impaired during the year ended 31
March 2011.

WETaHEEHEAREERRA R
AEZIRRRBEREERABMESE
ZEERBE-_T——F=ZA=1—
B FEERBURE -
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17. SECURITY DEPOSIT 17. RBLRE
The balance represents a deposit placed with a bank to secure EREAREERERES P IEEEE
the Group’s obligation to restore the environment when mining TEBRREZEAMNRBTEEZT
activities ceased. The deposit bears interest at the prevailing Ko FHIREE VIRITHEN XS
bank saving interest rate and can be withdrawn upon the B WA RANERZ HEEERNLT
expiry of the Group’s mining right and fulfillment of environment BERIBIEIR S (TAFIEER o

restoration obligation.

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMBARZIRE
The Company
LS
2016 2015
—B-XE —E-0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRAD - AR - -
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non FEURM B A T2 8 KR - it B
interest-bearing and repayable on demand. RBREESES o
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. RKIBA R ZRE ()
ARAR-B-AFR-F-RF=

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at

31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

A=+—BREZTENBRRFE

M
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued shares/
Class of operation registered capital Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiary shares held HRRL/HRR BRARG/ attributable to the Group Principal activities
WEATAN fikiEn  SEsE e AEEEERERY IEEH
2016 2015
ZE-RE ZF-RF
% %
Directly held:
ERKE:
Lasting Power Investments Limited Ordinary BvI USS1 100 100 Ivestment holding
NEREERAA LRk EBRAHS B3 RERR
Indirectly held:
HgiE
Star Fortune International Investment Company ~ Ordinary BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited (*Ster Fortune’) LBl ERRAHS 10057 RERR
ENEREARRE
ERAA ([ENEE])
Ming Kei Kai Yuan Investment Company Ordinary Hong Kong 60,000,000 shares 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Rk 3 60,000 000 RER
A RRERRAT
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Company Limited  Regjstered PRC RMB30,000,000 100 100 Coal mining and sales
AL RRIAREERT R hE ABRH30,0000007C RRREERR
Qitai County Zexu Trading Company Limited Registered PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Holding of an exploration
BaGERAEERAL AR AR hE ARE2,000,0000 right of coal mine
RRkREHRE

*

enterprise

& Registered under the laws of PRC as domestic enterprise

Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-owned

* RIFFEDEDIFEM A EBE RS

g RBEHBEEDIEMARARE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EFRINTARBREERRIBRENR
SEXEHEEZASENBAR -
BEER5 FNEMMBARZEH
SEUREBNITE °

RELFFREMER - SEMNBER
RBEAEMERITZERESR
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19. INVENTORIES 19. B&
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Consumables SHE W 491 1,410
Coal R 46,912 19,071
47,403 20,481
No inventories were written down for the year ended 31 March TEAHZ-_Z—A"F=-_A=1+—H
2016. During the year ended 31 March 2015, a reversal of HFEMRFE HE2—FT—HF=
HK$1,877,000 for inventory written down in prior year was A=+—HULEFER  ARETHEIX
recognised in profit or loss as certain government levy on coal HEZBINHEIUE - N B
production was cancelled. REm F—FE 2 FEMR1,877,000
BT o
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EWERKRHMEWKKIE
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Trade and bills receivables RN E R R E g = 6
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - e R
other receivables Hith e GRIE 2,385 2,993
Value-added tax and non-income tax JEUIEE T K
receivables EPTIEH 40 -
2,425 3,069
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be Fir 75 FE W& 51 K L A E U R IE T8 B
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. —F A E S ER AR o
The Group’s sales to coal customers are largely done on AEBRAKKRER ZHERBO LA
payment in advance basis. For certain well-established NHRIBEEEL - & THERIKZ
customers, the Group allows an average credit period of 90 BFEME @ AEBE#EZ FHEER
days. Q0K o
No trade and bills receivables are aged within one year (2015: WERRA—FR 2B ERREK
approximately HK$76,000). ZE (T —RF : #976,000/7T) °
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

21.

At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade
receivables (presented based on the invoice date) and bills
receivables (presented based on the issuance date of relevant
bills), net of allowance for doubtful debts was as follows:

20. FEWE R H BB Wk oE ()

IR BRI A RS - R E R (BB E
HHIZ%)) kK EE (REEE R
HHEBZ) - RNBRRIERER 2R
BT T

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 90 days 90K - 76
= 76

As of the end of reporting period, no trade and bills receivables
(2015: HK$NIl) that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
any customer for whom there was no recent history of default.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks (the “Banks”) in the PRC
(the “Derecognised Bills”), to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to these suppliers with a
total carrying amount in aggregate of HK$3,706,000 (2015:
HK$5,295,000). The Derecognised Bills will mature in one to
six months after the end of the reporting period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders
of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the Banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills, accordingly, it derecognised the full carrying amounts of
the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The
maximum exposure to loss arising from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted
cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills equal
to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant since the likelihood that
the Banks will default in remote.

21.

RBEREAERE - SEREMAEY
REBRIE 2 B E R e R iR
AT e R sk 2 EREF AR (=
TR :TET) -

HESRMEE
MN-E—-—XRE=A=+—0 X&H
MERTHERESEEZH TR
([EITNEMZETRIEER(KIE
BREE]) - WENENZESHEER
IRE4AEA H£53,706,0008 (= F
— A 5,295,000/ 70) Z FERT &K ©
BIFERER R RS BB RE —
EXRNEREE - REFEHEEE M
IRITHAMANR - AR IEEREEFAE
AHAEERBERE([HEESE
£l) - EERA AEECDEEREH
RIFBERERZEBATD AR LD
R A EEBUHERRIEERE
BEREEENERZZEERAE - &
CEARIBRER2HEESE
T URBEZERIEBREE 2R
BRI S R EMASTATEKBL 2 &
AEK  HERZEREZRAME -
EERA AEERRIEERERY
BEESEXAZAFELTEKXN Y
ARIRITIER SR Z AT BEIETK -
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21. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 21. EESREE (&)

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or loss FR - REBEWENEER FERAR
on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills (2015: HK$Nil). BEAEREANmEER( 22 —H
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing FTEL) c WEERIREFEERY
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. HEEZFEH RTINS EE -
22. STRUCTURED DEPOSIT 22. #EBMER

2016 2015

—E-XREF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Exchange rate linked structured deposit B RN A I 1K - 27,923
The Group did not enter into any new principal protected BE_Z-R"FZA=1T—HLHF
exchange rare linked structured deposit during the year ended £ NGB R] S AT AR AR AN AL

31 March 2016 (2015: HK$27,923,000). EREMEBEER(ZE—RF

27,923,00057T) °

The structured deposit at 31 March 2015 was classified as R-ZZE-—RF=A=+—H  #BE1
financial asset designated as at fair value through profit or loss FERA R RIETER N FEYIRILEE
and was arrived at on the basis of the valuation on that date by SARIEZERMEE - WERHEL
Roma Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent and qualified ReaBERBEMERM(MEEREE TR
professional valuers not connected with the Group and a fair fE) ERBBRTEERATNZBZ
value gain of HK$656,000 was recongised in profit or loss. HEEEEBUEER  RAaFERE

656,000/ T E R R o
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$343,587,000 (2015: approximately
HK$334,151,000) comprised bank balances and cash held by
the Group and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The bank balances and bank deposits
carried interest at market rates ranging from 0.09% to 4.45%
(2015: 0% to 4.1%) per annum.

BHERBEEEEHR

AEB 2R ERREEBEEEY
343,587,000 L (=T —HF : 4
334,151,000%870) * BREAEERFE
ZRITEHRESURREBHAE A=
MAKARZ EEFR - RITEH R
RITFETIRNT0.09EFEL445E(ZF
—RE  0BE41E) ZHIBFRREF

B o
N

2016 2015

—RE —ET-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Bank balance RITHEER 171,214 181,336
Short-term deposits with an REEIEB A=A AR

original maturity of three months or less SECEER 172,168 152,401

Cash on hand Re 205 414

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEEE 343,587 334,151

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

RehBReFEIER &?ET?IJLMEW
BEREEBIUINc BB EHEZ TR

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET F#&T

HK$ BT 128,722 106,736

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had balances amounted to
RMB139,605,923 (equivalent to HK$168,532,270) (2015
RMB139,388,000, equivalent to HK$177,008,000) that were
placed with banks in the PRC. Remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange controls imposed by the PRC
government.

R-ZE—RE=A=1+—H ' ~x&H
FRABRBRRTZEHAARE
139,605,923 7T (18 & 72168,532,2707%
T ZZE—RF  AR¥139,388,000
7T - HE R 177,008,000 7T ) © &
FREBEINZESCAIFRBRNETZ
HNEE HIFTARMR o
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade

24, BENERRAEMENRIE
PR IR R - ERERGRER

payables (presented based on the invoice date) were as

follows:

BEIZ25) 2Rl DA T

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FHT

Within 90 days CFNA) 6,237 3,203

91-180 days 91 XE180K 1,617 1,016

181-365 days 181K E365K 1,595 1,177

Over 1 year B F 28 176

Trade payables ERER 9,477 5,572

Receipt in advance TERGRIE 1,474 1,432
Value-added tax and non-income FEfIB(ER R IEFTSH

tax payable - 927

Government levies payable FER BT R E

— Economic development fees in coal — IR E R T 5

resources areas ERE 28,458 29,936

— Others —HAth 4,628 5,256

Accrued expenses EETER 1,547 2,437

Other payables HAbFETFRIA 7,084 6,120

52,668 51,680

P FEA B 3R B EL At AN SRR TR HA R
—FRBEHERRA -

All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year.

REmm FHEERRI80K - A%
B STV BRRERBR - BRM
BRENFIEREERRAEE

The average credit period of purchases of goods is 180 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in
the Company'’s individual components of equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

25. RAKf#E
a) MHE@DBHEH
REEZFE

R & Emy 2 F
RERGHH R NER S s
BHK - ARBERIERED Z
FUORERESHBHTILT

The Company
VNN
Exchange
Share  translation  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
REE Bt BB ZitFR a8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AL AL AL ThL
(note ) (note iv) (note vi)
k) (Fzkw) (Fitzhi)
At1 April 2014 RZZ-WFMA-A 191,534 15,452 128,013 (271,413 63,586
Loss for the year FRER - - - (46,950) (46,950)
Exchange differences on translation of BENHEERZTIEE
functional currency to presentation EREE
currency - % - - R2
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEBREE - o) - (46,950) (46,858)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R-E-RE=A=+-HkK
“Z-1%NA-A 191,534 15,544 128,013 (318,363) 16,728
Loss for the year EREE - - - (79,652) (79,652)
Bxchange differences on translation of B ERELF|EE
functional currency to presentation ERER
currency - (3,034) - - (3,034)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRETBELEE = (3.034) = (79,652) (82,686)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=A=1-H 191,534 12,510 128,013 (398,015) (65,958)
Notes: 5T
i) Share premium i) RAGRE

The application of share premium is governed by Section 40
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

BRRDRERRBFE— N\~

FARERAGEE -
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 25. RAEKRFHEE)
a) Movements in components of equity (continued) a) EEDEB(E)

The Company (continued) AT (4E)

Notes: (continued) PisE : (88)

ii) Capital reserve ii) BRAfEE
Capital reserve arose from the acquisition of the additional % 7N 5 R 7Y @ 1 F 2 BB I
equity interest of subsidiaries in prior years. It represents the BARIREINR AR o A
difference between the carrying amount of the net assets of BRI R EEBIMERE
the subsidiaries attributable to the additional interest at the MZEMBRAREEFEZE
dates of acquisition and the fair value of consideration paid mEEAEBMHGREQTFE
by the Group. 2= -

i)  Statutory reserves i) EERE
Statutory surplus reserve A ERE S
In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) REFEAREFME(HE])
regulations, all of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are YRR NEBE A TR E 2 M
required to transfer part of their profit after tax to the statutory B R R ZBR D K & 7 B 5 H
surplus reserve, which are non-distributable, before profit DB B ENERE T LTS
distributions are made. The amounts of the transfers are i ZREHEAETAIDIRZEE
subject to the approval of the boards of directors of these B BELHALHZSNA
companies in accordance with their articles of association. CEEGRRBREMBHEREME

ek o

Specific reserve for maintenance and production funds HERYERRZEERHE
Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is RIFPHMERERG - NEHE
required to transfer maintenance and production funds at RRAEEENE T L R &
fixed rates based on relevant bases to a specific reserve HEREEESZEEREE
account. The maintenance and production funds can be R -#ENAEEESAEELE
utilised when expenses or capital expenditures on production HEHBRZE2EE AT
maintenance and safety measures are incurred. The amount BAMELEESE - OBELE
of maintenance and production funds utilised would be BMEREEESHREEREER
transferred from the specific reserve account to retained RS REBEF o
eamings.

iv)  Exchange translation reserve iv) ERFEE
Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange EHEEREREDEEERE
differences arising from the translation of functional currency 2 EBEEL Z 2IINEZE
to presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in 5 o ZFEBREM A FEE
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(p). FTBCRERE -

v) Special reserve v) BRI E
The amount in special reserve represents the difference FRFEESSBEERE—PI
between the consideration paid for acquiring a further BENEHI9%BRAERE
49% equity interest in Star Fortune and the decrease in REBHEENESIFERERE
the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests of Star EER R =5 ©
Fortune.

vi)  Contributed surplus vi)  BAZRS
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the KRB ZBABBRIERRE B
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s RPTRBE AR B EITRG M
shares issued in exchange for the issued shares of the BOIZARNRRNEE &
companies being acquired and the value of net assets of the FriEEE AR R AERE
underlying companies acquired at the time of the Group’s —NWNAFAERELEMETE
reorganisation in preparation for its listing in 1995. Under the HBZBEESEZERE - BIE
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company may make BRE-AN—FQEE &K
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus in NAAEETBEATESAR
certain circumstances. R ERF LD ©

vi)  Distributable reserve vi) RIS IREE
At 31 March 2016, no reserves are available for distribution to R-_E—XNE=ZA=+—8 "
owners of the Company (2015: HK$nil). WEAHD R FARRBES A

ZRB(—E—AE TR -
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 25. BRAR#E(E)
b)  Authorised and issued share capital b) ZEERBEITHRA
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each Amount
SRERE
0108 T2
EBREA x|
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: ETE
Balance at 1 April 2014, AZE—OFEEMA—H
31 March 2015 and —E-RF=R=+—H
31 March 2016 N ZF—RF
=R=t—RZ#&& 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
Balance at 1 April 2014, R-ZT—MEmEA—A -
31 March 2015 and —E-RF=A=1+—H
31 March 2016 M ZF—R%F
ZA=t—Rz&#H 765,373,584 76,537
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LBRIEE AB BRI SR
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled 2B - WA RARRIEH LR
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. B—IR—F2%F - FAEEER
All ordinary shares rank equally with regards to the ERBARRZRBEEFEY
Company'’s residual assets. EX IR
c) Capital management c) BAXER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital AEBERERAZEZBETIR
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as EASEE R MEERIBFESE
a going concern, and to generate sufficient profit to A DL BRELE S0 F) B A
maintain growth and provide a satisfactory return to its HRPER - RARFEHRIUMEE
shareholders. o
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

c)

Capital management (continued)

The management actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders’ returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic condition. In view of this,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividend or the issue of new debt. No
changes were made in the objectives or policies during
the year.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, total debt
represented convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Equity
comprises all components of equity.

The debt-to-equity ratio at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are
as follows:

25. AR f#H (&)

c)

BEAEE(E)
BEERGT R REEEE
AEE - DEBRSBEREFER
TRREHE 2 BSEEKFER
R E AR Z 15 M ARFEZ
MEE T WARRE BN E
EHERERBIELRE - BER
It AEREE B BE
ITHESFEREBENGEE -
RERLEE BRIERIFLE
B g -

AEEAEDRB AL RIEREE
BARREZEE - gl = - 42
BEAETE /R AFEIRLE
BRAREZSRABEZTHRK
E% - mBmEa Z PrEEK

B

RIE—RFR_T—AF=A
—t—BZ2EZEERERNT

2016 2015
—E-AE “T—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAT
Non-current liability ERBAG
Convertible bond designated as B RIEATESRIL
financial liabilities at fair value FEENERE SR
through profit or loss BEZAIBRRES - 244,201
Current liability mEIAE
Convertible bond designated as B RIEATESRIL
financial liabilities at fair value FEENEE SR
through profit or loss BEZAIHBRRES 317,650 -
Total debt wam 317,650 244,201
Total equity B 72,887 158,811
Debt-to-equity ratio EmAaEL= 4.36 1.54

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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26.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 14 March 2008, the Company issued zero-coupon
convertible bond with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 to Ascent Goal simultaneously upon
completion of the issue and allotment of 400,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each. The bond is denominated in HK$
and entitles the holders to convert them into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
bond and its settlement date on 13 March 2011 in multiples
of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price HK$0.20 (subject to
adjustments) per share. The shares to be issued and allotted
upon conversions shall rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by
the Company on the date of such allotment and issue. If the
convertible bond has not been converted, the Company shall
repay the principal amount of the outstanding convertible bond
to Ascent Goal at 13 March 2011.

On 11 February 2011, the Company entered into a deed of
amendment with Ascent Goal, to extend the maturity date of
the convertible bond for 36 months and the conversion period
will accordingly be extended for 36 months from 14 March
2011 (date of extension) to 13 March 2014. Apart from the
extension of the maturity date and the conversion period, all
terms of the convertible bond remain unchanged from the
original terms.

Following the change of functional currency from HK$ to RMB,
the board of directors is of the view that the convertible bond
upon extension of maturity date (“Convertible Bond”) was no
longer convertible at a fixed for fixed relationship. Accordingly,
the Convertible Bond was designated as a financial liability at
FVTPL in the consolidated statement of financial position.

26.

AR ES
RZZENFEZA+MAE  ARFR
SEA 317 % Bt 2£400,000,000% &A%
BB IL 2 Bl 2 R - MEIRE
177K 4 4858 /200,000,000 T 2 Z B
ABRES - ZEFUETTHE - B
FHRHAEARANZESZITHBEELE
HHH-_T——FZA+=HHRH
BERF I B (EEAR0.20/8 T (7] T3
BB AR AF L@ - Ein
R 78 A&1,000,000/8 T 2 fZ 81 o #ians
1T R BE 3 2 AR 167 1tk 2 i) % B g 2%
DETHEAQRRRBEEMEETE
BERS A ZEREREZ  WA]
BIRESREER  KAQRER_-Z
——F=Z A+ =HEESERERA
MIRESH 2 AEHE -

RZZE——F-_A+—H ARAHE
BIZRINERTRIE - AT ES
2 B B A HAG6 A A K B HR A5 FE e
WHZE——F=RA+ WA (EHAE)
EHEAE—_E—MNME=A+=
H - BRERTIAFA REREI - 1A
AR EFETIRR B GG F T -

DNREEBEEETEASARKER  EF
ERAABBES ([ARERES DR
ABAEMS TR BABREBERE
e Wi - ATRIRESNER S MR
RARANEERRATEINRLAERS
NEEsEBAME -
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26. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 26. AIRRES (&)

On 21 January 2014, the Company entered into a second
deed of amendment with Ascent Goal (“New Convertible
Bond”), to extend the maturity date of the Convertible Bond
for 36 months and the conversion period will accordingly
be extended for 36 months from 14 March 2014 (date of
extension) to 13 March 2017 (“New Maturity Date”). Apart
from the extension of maturity date and the conversion period,
all terms of the convertible bond remain unchanged from the
original terms.

The New Maturity Date is considered to be a substantial
modification of terms of the Convertible bond as the discounted
present value of the cash flows of the New Convertible Bond is
more than 10% different from the discounted present value of
the cash flows of the outstanding Convertible Bond prior to the
extension of maturity date. As such, the Convertible Bond was
derecognised and the New Convertible Bond was recognised.
The fair value of the New Convertible Bond as at 14 March
2014 amounting to approximately HK$200,000,000. An
extinguishment loss of approximately HK$211,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss.

The Convertible Bond and the New Convertible Bond were
valued by the directors of the Company with reference to
valuation reports issued by independent qualified valuers
not connected to the Group. The increase in fair value of the
Convertible Bond from its carrying amount as at 31 March
20183 to the date of extension, and the New Convertible Bond
from the date of extension to 31 March 2014 and during the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016 have been recognised
in the profit or loss.
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26. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 26. AIRRES (&)
The movement of the New Convertible Bond for the year is set Fo B EERNERNZBEEY T -
out below:

New Convertible Bond

AR AR E 5
2016 2015
—E—XE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Balance at beginning of the year F &R 244,201 205,231
Fair value change charged to the profit or ~ FAB25HIk 2 A E & &)
loss 73,449 38,970
Loss/(gain) on translation of New AR &S
Convertible Bond denominated HNEBIRE RThRE R
in a foreign currency into the FHEZEE, (WE)
functional currency 13,831 (375)
Exchange adjustment arising on translation & 4L & & 2 7| S
of functional currency to presentation EAEZERFAE IR
currency and charged to other HE2EB AR
comprehensive income (13,831) 375
Balance at end of the year FREH 317,650 244,201
Analysed for reporting as: DITEIRAT :
Current liabilities mENAE 317,650 -
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE = 244,201
Difference between carrying amount and REEHEEESREE
maturity amount: EE
New Convertible Bond at fair value BRATEYERZ
AR AR 5 317,650 244,201
Amount payable on maturity B FE N £ 58 200,000 200,000
117,650 44,201
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26.

27.

CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 26. AR ES(E)
None of the Convertible Bond or New Convertible Bond had He—_ZE—REr_ZE—RHF=HA
been converted into ordinary shares of the Company during =+t B FEELEABRES S
the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. RRESFCEER AR AR LB -
PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION 27. B3R - B R IBIERAERE
AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMNA—H 2,762
Accretion expense IRIEF 187
Exchange difference FEN =% (141)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=HA=+—H 2,808

Mining activities may result in land subsidence or damage,
which could lead to losses to the residents of the mining areas.
Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required
to make compensation payments to the residents for their
losses resulting from land subsidence or damage, or to restore
the mining areas back to certain acceptable conditions.
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27. PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS (continued)
Under existing legislation, management believes that there are
no probable liabilities that will have a material adverse effect
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
The PRC government, however, has moved and may move
further towards the adoption of more stringent environmental
standards. Environmental liabilities are subject to considerable
uncertainties which affect the Group’s ability to estimate
the ultimate cost of remediation efforts. These uncertainties
include: (i) the exact nature and extent of the contamination
at various sites including, but not limited to, coal mines and
land development areas, whether operating, closed or sold,
(i) the extent of required cleanup efforts, (jii) varying costs of
alternative remediation strategies, (iv) changes in environmental
remediation requirements, and (v) the identification of new
remediation sites.

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
clean up costs has been determined by management based on
their past experience and best estimate of future expenditure
by discounting the expected expenditures to their net present
value. However, in so far as the effect on the land and the
environment from current mining activities becomes apparent
in future periods, the estimate of the associated costs may
be subject to revision in the future. The amounts provided in
relation to close down, restoration and environmental clean
up costs are reviewed at least annually based upon the facts
and circumstances available at the time and the provisions are
updated accordingly.

27. B - EERRERERE

(&)
BIFRITEN - EEEHEETSBE
T {a] A] B 3 AN 52 B B A5 R SR A i 2
BHEERAMFE,ERE - A - &
BRAE & A — S EHE &
BZBRRIZE - REBETHREER
Bz THTEREZ  YragerErEd
HEFRRRBMERAZED - tE
THFRESE  (\WTRME(BIE
EBTRRRLES CRFAEHEZ
S5 R LR ) EEHIRSR
HEREE ((BEE2RABFEIIEZ
BE s (i) S EHEA R R ARRIE
A (WVIRBEERTZENR &
() FETE 7 IR BRI RS e 2 #h 2h o

EEECRBERFEBELR LY
ARF R 2 &EMF - LATFAERF
MREHBRAFEMETHE  BER
NBRIFBEKAER - AT - RER
RIS R B R 2 L RIRBEER
ARRBEAEGRE - AR ZE
SHRARRKIELIERT - BLEE - 1B
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IRIEBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) UTABERZEZREHERRE
recognised and movement thereof during the current and prior (BE) U RENAIRE BE KB TR
reporting periods. S HAR 7 B E o
Intangible Accrual
assets Inventories expenses Total
BILEE FE [ETEAR e

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
THET TET TAT TAET

At 1 April 2014 R-Z—mEmA—H 18,311 (285) (7,471) 10,555
Exchange realignment PE 3 % 26 - (12) 14
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss RERBz=IK,(5FA)
for the year (2,400) 222 - (2,178)
At 31 March 2015 and RZE—RF
1 April 2015 —A=+—8k
—E—hHFMA—H 15,937 (63) (7,483) 8,391
Exchange realignment PE 5 (697) 3 369 (325)
Charge/(credit) to profit or RERBZNR,(GEA)
loss for the year (4,446) 2,935 - (1,511)
At 31 March 2016 RIZE—RF
=A=+—8H 10,794 2,875 (7,114) 6,555
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial RETSARR R EER -
position:
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Net deferred tax liability recognised RERE M IEIRR R IER 2
in the consolidated statement of EERIR A EF5
financial position 6,555 8,391
6,555 8,391
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 March 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$996,000 (2015: HK$957,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams. Tax losses will be expired in 5 years.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is payable
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the accumulated taxable profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$112,670,000 (2015: HK$93,504,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

28.

IEERLIE ()

RZZE—AF=A=+—8 £%H
2 A B) A B I 518 53,996,000/ 7T (=
T—F4F : 957,000/8 7)1 A ¥ 34
RICHF o 7B ATER A 18 2 5 )
R - H AR A BRI RRE T
PIEARE - BUABRRRAEREE -

BIBEFRBEMCEMERE BTN
F—A—HR  #aFREBARA
H P BREN 2 5% B i 5k 2 A% S EUTE
NH - BB P BB AR R FIE
s F B 2 BT £ 58112,670,00078 7T
—Z—FHF : 93,504,000 7T ) FAER
AU BBMRELELERERE - HE
REB R HIR R TR EE o RE -
BBBERERNA R R KA
o) -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BEALRS
a) Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated a) BREAUBREREMBOFIEE
financial statements, the significant related party EZ9N > BREEALTZSIOT ¢
transactions are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAET
China Sonangol International Limited ZHEERAMRARA A
(“CSI") (note a) ([ZH R ) (FfzEa)
— rental expenses (note b) — e (M7Eb) 735 675
Notes: Mz -
a) CSl is an intermediate holding company of the Company. a) ZHREBREAEERDT ZFRNIZER
NI
b) Operating lease commitment for future minimum lease b) WiEEZARBEEE 2 o &

payments under non-cancellable operating lease with CSI
was amounted to HK$585,000 (2015: HK$540,000).

HEelE  AREMFRE
HERBzREHEREE
5850008 L (=T —HEF :
540,000/ 7T) ©
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 29. BEALRZ (&)

b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management personnel during the year was as follows:

b) FEEEAESHE
ERNEENHEMTBEERERE
ZEBAT

2016 2015

— NI —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Short-term employee benefits REEBRET 4,303 3,869
Post-employment benefits BB & 1= T 66 68
4,369 3,937

The remuneration of directors was determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
The Group leases certain of its offices, warehouse and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Lease for
properties are negotiated for a term ranging from one to three
years and rental are fixed.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

EEHMES Mé%%%ﬂ&%
ZEARR LM SEBEET

. REHERIE
AEFERRBEA
AEBRBEEHETHBERETS
FHRAE - FEMEBIBEE - ZEY
¥CHNBEERENT—FE=F
g HELEE -

RS HREERE - AEBERESA
BEEEHEMN R RN 2 RIEH
ERIEAERIAT BRI E -

2016 2015

—RE —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Within one year —F R 1,044 1,012
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF

(BREEEMF) = =

1,044 1,012
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 30. #&R#&fEEHRE (&)
The Group as lessor AEEEABAA
The Group leases out certain of its offices under operating AREBRBEELEHELHLHEETS
lease arrangements. Lease for properties are negotiated for a THAE - ZEWMHF 2 M HLER
term ranging from one to three years and rental are fixed. BNF—FE2=F1%  HLETE -
At the end of reporting period, the Group had future aggregate PR HARI RS ANEFE G E Yy
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating BIE TR B & Z T E R R K U ER
leases in respect of its properties as follows: ZEREERENT ¢
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Within one year —FNR 173 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EERF
(BIEEEME) - -
173 -
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. HBRRERE

31.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 August
2008 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to directors and eligible employees and expired
on 27 August 2013.

According to the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, any technical, financial, and legal professional
advisors who have contributed to the Group, to subscribe for
shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot
of share options granted.

Options granted should be accepted within 28 days from the
date of grant. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of adoption of the Scheme.

RARRR_ZEZ=FNA-T/\BK
m—IRRERERT EI([FHE)) - BAvR
AEERSEREERHEER LD
HoEER_E—=FN\A-+L
B &

RIEFTE - ARREFARAERE
8§ BREARRKELANBARZ
B AREMEHAKEFELRR
ZHIER - B A REREA - B
FMORBREEER - BT RREARER
ARFRL, - BHERLBRE 2R
EBRUET -

Bz AR AR R B HARB AT 28 H
NE A o RIFFHEI RAR B H A
BRSNS TR 2 BRERE R
TERABRITZRMDEBE - &HETE
BBAR RN EFEMN B AR BT
7210% °
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, there was no remaining
outstanding share options granted under the Scheme (2015:
Nil). The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may be
exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option. The exercise price is determined
by the directors and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (i)
the nominal value of the share.

The Scheme has expired on 27 August 2013.

Total number of securities available for issue under the share
option scheme as at 31 March 2016 was Nil (2015: Nil). The
maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015,
no option was granted under the Schemes to directors,
employees or consultants of the Group.

There was no outstanding share option as at 1 April 2013, 31
March 2015 and 31 March 2016.

31.
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32. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN 32. EEMFTERKEE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June
2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of
the salaries of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees, are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year to which they are related
and represented the amount of contributions payable by these
subsidiaries to this scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,137,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,134,000)
represents contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
in respect of the current financial year.

AEBERIFRBIERTE R EIGD S
XEBRRGIEE CXBREE S
—IHERHTGRHE AT E (M=
BEAtE]) - wEESHI R —HAE
URENER 2 EREFRKTE -
RIFRESFE  BIREREERA
BinE B AR A% AT BT - &
=& AEBERARI000ET(=F
—PIE X AA17325,000/87T) ° 7 &I
FRENES SR8

ARRERBEKL 2 HERERHE
BT & 2 B 5 & IR KA R &l 2
B o BRINGHEIHFRBET BB A
AEEBZHEETEOLE Y&
HRERFEEFRA R EME2E
W R NI - BEAULEHE QR
e T4 BT &) 2 R EHE -

R B R E M2 KSR
2 HARK R #91,137,0008 T (ZE—H
F : 491,134,000 70 ) I8 N EE B HE A
BRFEMZ S RN 2 -
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33. COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

EZE-RF=ZA=Z+-HLEE

33. AEEmZYMBMRRT

POSITION
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 267 278
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIEE 18 = -
267 278
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries BB B~ B F AR 153,794 153,765
Other receivables HAth e U GRIE 252 434
Structured deposit R - 27,923
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEEE 174,852 156,736
328,898 338,858
Current liabilities REBEE
Convertible bond designated as BT BN TETR
financial liabilities at fair value WEBRANEEIE 2
through profit or loss DRLE E 2 AT
&5 317,650 -
Other payables and accruals Hb I HRIE R
FEETER 936 1,670
(318,586) (1,670)
Net current assets REBEEFE 10,312 337,188
Total assets less current liabilities #BEERGEERE 10,579 337,466
Capital and reserves IR R
Share capital A& A 25 76,537 76,537
Reserves (Ee=] (65,958) 16,728
Total Equity R 10,579 93,265
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Convertible bond designated as B AR ATESIER
financial liabilities at fair value Wi iBamNERE 2
through profit or loss SRV E 2 TR
&H - 244,201
10,579 337,466

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

21 June 2016.

On behalf of the board

Lo Fong Hung
'R

Director

The notes on pages 56 to 158 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Wang Xiangfei
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34,

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2016 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

s
A

Y
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5‘45
BEZSHBRETR2E 55
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BAUBREEL SRTA
SEO5

BAUBREEL EERTERPS
145

BARBREEL BPAEHKE
155

BARBREEL HE
E16%

N

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments!
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers!
HKFRS 16 Leases*
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
HKFRS 11 Joint Operations?
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative?
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 16 and Depreciation and Amortisation?
HKAS 38
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10, Consolidation Exception?
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
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STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
HKFRS 10 and Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?
HKAS 28

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements being on or after

1 January 2016

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments
to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R &= sk

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been
removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the standard.
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34,

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides comprehensive guidance for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment by
lessees and lessors. In particular, HKFRS 16 introduces a
single lessee accounting model, whereby assets and liabilities
are recognised for all leases, subject to limited exceptions.
It replaces HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
including HK(IFRIC) 4. Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how to
account for the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant principles
on accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and
other standards (e.g. HKAS 12 Income Taxes regarding the
recognition of deferred taxes at the time of acquisition and
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing
of a cash generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of
a joint operation has been allocated) should be applied. The
same requirements should be applied to the formation of a
joint operation if and only if an existing business is contributed
to the joint operation by one of the parties that participate in
the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant

information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations (continued)

The amendments should be applied prospectively to
acquisitions of interests in joint operations (in which the
activities of the joint operations constitute businesses as
defined in HKFRS 3) occurring from the beginning of annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 11 may have an impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods
should such transactions arise.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements give some guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 1 will have a material impact on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation
method for items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to HKAS 38 Intangible Assets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption
can only be rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

(@ when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

34.

RBE-ZE-—XR"FE=A=1+—
HIEFECEMEMKRERZ
85T - T EARRBZBE
EE(E)
ERUBRE LA BT BT RK
BHAEERE aRE(E)
BRI AEE —E—~F—A—8
o 14 B 1A > 4 S HARS AR Bh U B A
s ER(RBARE 2 EDBRE
BT REEAIEIRLBAVRTE
TS BHER  ANTIEEEY
RARRER - BB SEE - B
FERBUBREENE R 2B
ATGUREE Y GANBHRRESL
g .

EFRETENE IR BT ARKEE
EEGERFIRMBERR 2252
EAARMAEREAEEZEMRSR
L4535 -

BEGFHEANE IR ZEBITAR-E
—RE-A—BRARFIRZFER
AR - ARREZBRHERET LS
FHERIEASRZER] AR @ HAK B
EUBRRICERSREREAT
@,

TR EUNR16R R TR ER
BB BRI A EMITE RBHTA
EZEE
BEGFERFE16RME - BFE LR
BZEAARE L ERERNRSESHE
BZHAEYE - BMERREEE
BIE  BAEGTEAEIBREL
BEZIERT AN A — A R 2 |
R BIAWESERBIEE C BIHE
EYAAME - ZRRIEATRIATME
BREREHES

@ BELEERMNGZEE X

(b)  FIRE AR e B A A A A e
ERAETRE

Annual Report 2016 &3 155



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt &3k &= sk

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34. RBZ=ZE—XRF=Z/A=+—

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(continued)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group
uses the straight-line method for depreciation and amortisation
for its property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
respectively. The directors of the Company believe that
the straight-line method is the most appropriate method to
reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent in
the respective assets and accordingly, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and HKAS 41 Agriculture define a bearer plant and require
biological assets that meet the definition of a bearer plant to be
accounted for as property, plant and equipment in accordance
with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41. The produce growing on
bearer plants continues to be accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 41.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
41 will have a material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements as the Group is not engaged in agricultural
activities.

156 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B &EREXHER AT

HiIEFECEMAEMRERZ
125 WAl EA KRB ZEE
& (|)
EEGHEAFI6RRES G EA
B8 B AT A TR ITE RIS T
EZEE ()
HEETRMERAR T —RF—A
— B2 RBIE 2 AR - R -
REBHBIREME - BE R E A
REREERBEGDETHERE
B ARREERR - HREBRBR
BEREAERREENREZ B &E
Bk Bt ADRBEERY - &
AEBGEAEI6RREER A
AIF38YE 2 M EE T AT G AE
B2 AR ERRELEAVE -

EREHENE16RRETEGEL
FMMZBRTARE - EEMEY
BEGFERFE16HME - BF LR
BREEGTEREATREZER
ARELEEEEY  XBERKTEEE
HEVMERZEMEERBER LGSR
ERIFE 1658 MIFT B G ERF 4155
SIBRERME - BB R&iE - BEL
EUEYRSERBERETESNE
AIFE415R518R -

HRAKEYENEREES AR
REFEY  ERARSEEGER
F165E R BB G ERIE4158 2 1EF]
AT EHARE 2 RAMBRRE
EEATE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3R 3K i s

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting
from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate
or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial
Statements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
clarify that the exemption from preparing consolidated financial
statements is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of
an investment entity, even if the investment entity measures
all its subsidiaries at fair value in accordance with HKFRS
10. The amendments also clarify that the requirement for an
investment entity to consolidate a subsidiary, whose main
purpose is to provide services and activities that are related to
the investment activities of the investment entity parent, applies
only to subsidiaries that are not investment entities themselves.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as the Group is not an
investment entity and does not have any subsidiary, associate
or joint venture that qualifies as an investment entity.
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34,

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or a disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners (or
vice versa). The amendments clarify that such a change should
be considered as a continuation of the original plan of disposal
and hence requirements set out in HKFRS 5 regarding the
change of sale plan do not apply. The amendments also clarify
the guidance for when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in
a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required
in relation to transferred assets.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used
to discount post-employment benefit obligations should
be determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. The
assessment of the depth of a market for high qualify corporate
bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the same currency as
the benefits are to be paid). For currencies for which there is no
deep market in such high quality corporate bonds, the market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
denominated in that currency should be used instead.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material effect on
the amounts recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBGRE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-Z—RF=A=1+—HLEE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set

AEERBELEMRFED AHES - B
ENABEANHERESEIIMT

out below.
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 March
BE-A=+—-HLHEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZB-XRE —T-0E —T-NE —T-=F —T-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT FHT THT FAT
TURNOVER EEL 59,841 124,463 123,100 165,041 190,974
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM mERN(BR)

OPERATIONS 12,108 45,450 1,402 8,937 26,966
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMB QT2 Wz - - - - 1,141
Net gain on deregistration of (olEPNEIE 6z FRilli o

subsidiaries s 5 = - - - -
Finance costs &R AR (187) - - (23) -
Change in fair value of convertible  FJ#R% &% 2

bond NEEEH (73,449) (38,970) (15,373) 24,031 (12,703)
Change in fair value of structured ~ #&H M FE2

deposit NFEES) - 656 - - -
(Impairment loss)/reversal on BVEAERYE  BE

intangible asset and property, Kt ORifE

plant and equipment E18) /B (12,012) = = (49,928 39,733
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZRERBE = = - - -
(Loss)/profit before tax BEiAT(ER) %A (73,540) 7,136 (13,971) (16,983) 55,137
Income tax expense PR (6,068)  (12,655) 515 6,803 (11,420)
(Loss)/profit for the year FRER), B (79,608) (6,519  (13456)  (10,180) 43,717
Attributable to: FE1G -

Owners of the Company RATHEA (85,924) (5,342) (10,221) (9,101) 43,717
Non-controlling interests FEPERR AR - = = = =
(85,924) (6,342)  (10,221) (9,101) 43,717
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY F fF 8 &=
For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ-_Z—RE=A=1+—HILLEE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING XEREEBUKRIFEZEBRES

INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-A"F “T0F ZT-MmF —T-=F ZT--F
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
T TAT THET THET TAET
Total assets BEE 456,185 475,242 433,948 426,547 460,292
Total liabilities BafE (383,298)  (316,431)  (269,795)  (252,173)  (276,817)
Non-controlling interests IR RERS - - _ _ _
Net assets BEEHE 72,887 158,811 164,153 174,374 183,475
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